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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B #5478

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MEREE

Audited results for the

year ended 30th April,
BENA=STRHILEEEZREREE Increase/
2009 2008 (Decrease)
—BENE ZETN\F #an CRd)
Turnover (HKS'M) st (BT ) 275 337 62)
Loss for the year (HKS'M) REEEER(GEET) (96) (44) 52
Loss per share (HKS) GREECET) (0.13) (0.06) 0.07
EBITDA (HK$'M) (Note 1) EBITDA( & &) (Hiit1) (2) 58 (60)

(Audited)

As at

30th April, 2009
(RRER)
R=ZBBLF
A=+H

Net debt gearing ratio (%) FEEBEERLE%)

(Audited)

As at

30th April, 2008
(F&5=1%)
RZEZTN\F
MA=+H

Increase/
(Decrease)

g, (R

6% 19%

(Note 2) (Brat2) 25%
Notes: Kiat -
1. Earnings before interest, tax , depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA") is 1.

computed as loss before tax plus depreciation, finance costs, impairment
losses, share of loss of an associate, and losses arising from changes in fair
value of derivative financial instruments.
2. Net debt gearing ratio is defined as total debts, including borrowings, 2.

trust receipt loans and bills payable less bank balances and cash over
shareholders’ equity.

BRAES - BiE - FrEE KRB HA AT ([EBITDAL) Th
LABRFRATESIE « INITEE - BEAKA - REFE
DMEBERFEERTESRT AR FEESE
7 EIBRTE o

FREAARL R ERERBERAR(BERE
EREEER RN RR)BRTABRKIRER
VAR A2
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GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATIONS AND TURNOVER ANALYSIS
il N2 KR DT

GEOGRAPHICAL TURNOVER ANALYSIS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL,
2009 AND 2008 (%)

BEZEZNFR-ZEZN\FHAZTHLEFEZHEERED T (%)

TURNOVER ANALYSIS BY PERCENTAGE
BEALIIRZEREIN

8% 8%

1% 1%

EUROPE SINGAPORE OTHER ASIAN MALAYSIS HONG KONG
BOM Fhnig COUNTRIES BRAR BB
Hih T NE =R

. 2008 . 2009
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESEETES

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present to shareholders the results of the
Group for the year ended 30th April, 2009.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 30th April, 2009, the Group reported turnover of
HKS$275 million (2008: HK$337 million), a decrease of HK$62 million or 18%.
The decrease in turnover was partly due to the disposal of Talent Focus
Industries Limited (“TFIL") on 20th February, 2009, formerly a wholly-owned
subsidiary which ceased to contribute to group's turnover and share of
loss since 1st November, 2008. The consolidated net loss of HK$96 million
(2008: HKS44 million) is an increase of HK$52 million loss as compared with
last year. The basic loss per share was HK$0.13 (2008: HK$0.06). EBITDA,
computed as loss before tax plus depreciation, finance costs, impairment
losses, share of loss of an associate, and losses arising from changes in fair
value of derivative financial instruments, decreased to a loss of HKS2 million
(2008: EBITDA of HK$58 million). The net debts gearing ratio was increased
from 6% at the beginning of year to 25% at the balance sheet date given
reduced net assets impacted by the impairment losses of HK$50 million
(2008: HKS$21 million).

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The business environment for the Group in the financial year ended 30th
April, 2009 was exceptionally challenging. The Group encountered serious
inflationary pressure characterised by high costs in copper and silver,
increasing wages and electricity charges in mainland China in the first
half of financial year 2009 and sharp drop of demand for semiconductor
products followed by financial crisis in the second half of financial year
2009.

AARREEFTGRBRE
FOA=THIFEZEE -

EAKEHE_TTAN

FEES
HE-_ZTAFHA=THIFE » KREEESE
& % 58275,000,000/ 70 ( ZZFZ A\ : 337,000,000/
70 AL 4262,000,00078 70 8% 18% © & B8R > ThEB
PEERE_ZTNF_A-_THEER=ZZN
F+—A—HRBEEFLAAEEGRE (B AR/
EohEiEziizENB AR REEXERA A

([B818 ) - 436 E518)F 58 596,000,000/8 L ( ZBE
J\EE © 44,000,000/ 7T ) + BREFIE 10E5HE52,000,000
BT BREKREBEA013BT( T )\F ¢
006/87L) o BRAIE - BiIE - E REHAAF
([EBITDA] + LABRTRBIESHE « MNITE - BEKA
BEEE  HhBEARBERITESHTAEAF
BEFEEZEEFTE) - B EEE200000078
JTL(ZZZ/)\F : EBITDAA58,000,00078TT) ° F &
BEALLERFVZ6WEMELLE A 225% @ JhE
& 2 FE SR B 5 18.50,000,00078 7T AT 77 22 T Rk
D(ZZTZT )\ : 21,000000/87C) °

FAEDE

BHE_ZTNFOA=THILHMERFE - xEBZ
ERRBGANE - R -_TTENIREFEELFF
RERARE  MEFEABTEREE 7t
SAKERZBEERKEY  FERERFTRITR
B_TTNMBEFE T FRE SRS -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

For the year ended 30th April, 2009, the Group recorded a turnover of
HKS$275 million representing a decrease of 18% as compared to its turnover
of HK$337 million for the year ended 30th April, 2008. The decrease in
turnover was attributable to rapid downturn in demand for semiconductor
and electronic products in the second half of the financial year 2009 due
to financial crisis in late 2008 and the disposal of TFIL, a formerly wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company engaged in manufacture and sale of
stamped leadframes and moulds on 20th February, 2009 to streamline

our operation. The Company ceased to take up the share of loss of TFIL
since 1st November, 2008. Excluding the disposal of TFIL, the turnover of
the Group decreased by approximately 17.5% as compared with turnover
for the financial year 2007/08. Adjusted loss for the year, after taking out
the effects of the impairment loss on property, plant and equipment of
HKS50 million (2008: HKS21 million) and the loss arising from change

in fair value of derivative financial instruments of HK$12 million (2008:
HK$37 million), would be HK$34 million (2008: profit of HKS$ 14 million);
reflecting an unfavourable business environment manifested by increased
in wages, energy prices, metal costs and operating costs in mainland China
impacting negatively on the Group’s business operations and margins.
Turnover generated from ASAT was maintained at 30% in the year under
review (2008: 26%).

MAJOR ASSOCIATE - ASAT

References are made to the Company’s announcements dated 1st
February, 3rd March, 2nd June and 2nd July, 2009 regarding ASAT, an
approximately 43.22% owned associated company of the Company,
entering into forbearance agreements with certain holders (the
“Noteholders”) of New ASAT (Finance)'s 9.25% Senior Notes due 2011 (the
“Notes”) and lenders (the “PMLA Lenders”) in respect of a Purchase Money
Loan Arrangement (“PMLA"), and reaching an agreement in principle with a
majority of its creditors on the terms of a consensual financial restructuring
of the obligations of New ASAT (Finance) under the Notes and ASAT under
the PMLA.

EETNFNA=THILFE » KEEHRBE
5827500000087 - REEZZZTNFMNA=+
B IEFE 2 & % 58337,000,00078 TLI8 4 18% © &%
BB TEEN L EBLETERTRE_STAN
FREETHEFRA-_ZTT)\FRZEHOEN=
B UMK -ZETNF A - +AHERERER
HEFESIRIER TIEZ 2 A B A RBRENIE
EBHY - AAFTBE -_ZZN\F+— A —BER
IERERRBZEER - T kL EHBE A58
AR T+ T)\BRFEZEEERIL
17.5% ° fOBRIZE - #425 I 5% fe Rk B /8518 50,000,000
BT (ZZZ)\4F : 21,00000078 7T ) LA B HT4E S Bl
T AR EZEEA 2 E51812,0000008 T (ZEE
J\EE : 37,000,000/ 7T ) < 5o 21% - FAKFHEEIE
34,000,000/ 70 ( ZZF Z )\ F : & 514,000,000/%
JL)  RMABERHTE - gERER 2BKA R
KERR AR FARFTEE N & IR A E EB 2
B ERFBEEKRZ AEFE c REBEFER © 4
KN ERL 2 & EBERFR30%( 2T \F 1 26%)
ZIKFE o

FEBENT — %KX

R ARFRAA—TEENF_A—H =ZA=
H - NAZBEREtBE-BHBzZA MG ABREBEAR
AIHEE #)43. 220 05 2 Bt & N R B4R UL E RE K
% ([ B RE ek 1) ENew ASAT (Finance) Z —
T——FHHSEERLEE(EEDETHEEA
([ZEFEADRKEFA(EFEFTBEETRAD
RIS AL BRE R ek - W ERE KBy B R AL 2Ra 1
B EA(EA ) 2 ERCER R AR - 9%
K New ASAT (Finance)iR & =15 R K IR B B N E
HKipE 2 EIE °
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ASAT announced, on 31st July, 2009, that it had received an extension of
the forbearance period of an additional 30 consecutive days, commencing
on 31st July, 2009 and expiring on 30th August, 2009 (the “Additional
Forbearance Period”), under the forbearance agreements dated 2nd
March, 2009 entered into with the Noteholders under the Notes issued

by New ASAT (Finance) and the PMLA Lenders under the PMLA entered
into by ASAT. Under the terms of the forbearance agreements, the lenders
agreed to forbear from exercising their rights and remedies against ASAT
arising out of certain designated defaults until 30th August, 2009, subject
to certain early termination events. The same terms and conditions of the
original forbearance period will stay in effect for the Additional Forbearance
Period, except that the definition of “specified defaults” has been expanded
to include the failure to pay interest on the Notes on 1st August, 2009 and
to pay interest on the PMLA on 30th June, 2009.

Should ASAT be unable to maintain an adequate level of financing and/or
suffer severe financial difficulties, this will have a material adverse impact
on the sales, operations, overall results and prospects of the Group.
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group continued to make sales
transactions to this associate, the management of the Group is closely
monitoring the position to ensure that the associate will settle according
to the agreed credit terms.

The Group held 43.22% (2008: 42.88%) of ASAT with nil carrying value as

at 30th April, 2009 and 2008. The Group has continued not to recognise

its share of losses of ASAT, except for any additional investment in ASAT
comprising HKS5 million, as at 30th April, 2009 (30th April, 2008: HKS4
million), loan portion of convertible preferred shares in ASAT, which forms
part of the investment in ASAT, and a receipt of preferred shares dividends
during the year in the form of ordinary shares of ASAT to a value of
approximately HK$4 million (2008: HK$8 million), received by the Group in
respect of its holding of convertible preferred shares in ASAT, which carries
a preference dividend rate of 13% per annum payable semi-annually either
in cash or in ordinary shares, at the option of ASAT.

BIEXVR_TZNFELA=Z+—BEMH  ERIE
B Z R4 A BiNew ASAT (Finance) T 31T 2 2%
MERERZERAREK I 2 ERER
W B AT ENF= A - HZEHBHER
R REHENREESEII=TH B=FF
NEEtA=+—HBAK  TR_ZFEZNFNA=1
BEm([BBIMNERERTER]) o IRIBEEERNBZE
B BRARBNMTEESIE TIEEELFTE
ST RS R R ERERFER - B2 =%
TNENA=THAL  EXETRAKIESHR
il o R 50T BRES B 2 A R GRS G A BB SN E A
ENEDAR N  EIEEEOITE ZSEEEER
ERERER_ZTTNFNA —BIXNAEEFER
RENR—ZEZNEANA=TEINERER HEF

=1
N

SRR EE BRI R, RE R ERIR
MBRE - AEBZHEE K2 EREXERAR
HERAERTHNEE - NEHEBER  NEE&E
B MENRETHER S - AKEEEELZY]
BEMR - RERE S AR RE R EEERTKER
A e

INE BB LR 43.22%( —Z T )\F : 42.88%)
HR-_ZTNER_ZTZT\EFWNA=+HZEEE
BHEZT - AEEEEEF IHERE D (R ZE
1B RSO EAEEIMNEERIBRSN - B EE
R-ZZTTNFNA =+ HEREERUEE—HD 2
L4 ST A] 3R AR B S ik 2 B RER 435,000,000/ 70 (=
ZEN\FMA=1+H : 400000087T) @ RAEE
R SRS 2 ATIARB R % - AN E LAZE (K
SRR 7 30U ER (B (8 494,000,000/ T ( Z B E )\
£ 1 8,000,000/870) Z BERMRE + ZFAIAMRE
Je AR BT B B IR GRS 2R TE AR LB
NEFIR13% L B E -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEHE
The unrecognised share of losses for the year ended 30th April, 2008  E_EEN\FUNA=THIEFE  RERDEE
amounted to HK$43 million and the accumulated unrecognised share $8/543,00000087L ' RZZEZN\FHA=+HEZ
of losses amounted to HK$383 million as at 30th April, 2008. As ASAT sHARMER D hE1E Bl £383,000,0008 7T © BREZE
has not, to the date of this report, published its financial statements RIEBHLE - #EUDARTIBEBE_STNF
for the year ended 30th April, 2009, the Group cannot determine the MA=1TRHIFFEZHBERR  WAREREETE
unrecognised share of ASAT's losses for the year ended 30th April, 2009 or (E-ETNFN A= HIEFEARER D (HEE4K
its accumulated unrecognised share of ASAT's losses as at that date. N Z BB EHEZA L2 Bt RER D (HEEK
[E518 -
By reference to the closing price of an ADS of ASAT on the Over-the- BPRELKN 7 FERABLFNEE BIEERISINR 5%
Counter Bulletin Board/NASDAQ Market at the balance sheet date, the BRNASDAQT B ZWHE - REBR -_ZETH
market value of ASAT attributable to the Group as at 30th April, 2009 was F0Y A =+ B G G4k X 2 T {8 412,000,000 7T
HK$12 million (2008: HK$59 million). ZZT)\F : 59,000,00077T) °
OUTLOOK Al
The outbreak of the financial crisis in the second half of 2008 brought RIEZNFNEFER S RCHEEREETR
tremendous challenges to the Group. Consumer confidence and spending BRI HkEL - R BR 2 H B EZ0 R EEBER
in developed countries has been significantly reduced. To offset to this Do B AT - ANEE D IR
unprecedented challenge, the Group has taking serious measures to HE—F IR EHBI ISR - BEIREBHEE T HETIERE
further reinforce its financial position. Management has remained focused AREBER » LABRERAK « iSEEW RN REER
on the efforts to streamline our operations to reduce costs, improve EPRHEABECEEEMREENERBIR -
operating efficiencies and deliver quality products and shortened lead TEMR EE T AABRE P IRIE - A E IR RS
time solutions that offer value to our customers. This enables the Group EMETEMEARSIER - BERBARNTIRES
to react proactively to the uncertain business environment. The Group B EAEERNICEDRECEE - REFE

also exercises tight control on implementation of any capital expenditure BEAEEMSMNE AEBE T NLFRAR
projects in a prudent manner. Despite the short-term difficulties, the Group ~ Z &R F:IE 2 EFiB2 B AN FEFHBTIE
is seeking to take advantage of perceived opportunities to expand our HNERZE EF -

market share in targeted areas. The Group has experienced an uptrend in

order placements from customers since May 2009 and this has triggered

higher production output and utilisation since the commencement of

current financial year.

By seeking to capitalize on market opportunities, the Group expects to FRBERMSHSE  AEEEAEFEEREFM
achieve better financial performance when semiconductor and electronics 35 BB LA R & GRS RS » BI IS RIBS E A8
markets stabilize and the economic recovery commences. Drawing on its 18 o AREBFENVIRRFTRE - HBERPEZEE  #R

competencies, the Group will nurture ties with customers to ensure that it~ BVSIEE 2 Uiz 3R K2 IR AB 32 BRI o
has secured stable sources of revenue with satisfactory margins.




FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year, the Group has repaid certain bank and other loans in

a sum total of HK$13 million. As at 30th April, 2009, the Group's total
outstanding debts of HK$31 million (2008: HK$33 million) comprised of
HKS3 million (2008: HKS$10 million) trust receipt loans and bill payables,
HKS$12 million (2008: HK$13 million) other secured bank loan, HK$6 million
unsecured bank loan (2008: Nil) and HK$10 million (2008: HKS 10 million)
loan from a director. In terms of maturity, borrowings of HK$27 million
(2008: HK$33 million) or 87% of the total debts will be repaid within one
year (2008: 100% repayable within one year). In terms of interest bearing,
HKS$20 million (2008: HK$19 million) was interest bearing and HK$11 million
(2008: HKS 14 million) was interest free. In terms of currency denomination,
approximately 10% (2008: 46%) was denominated in US Dollars (“USD"),
approximately 38 % (2008: 31%) was denominated in Renminbi ("RMB”),
approximately 52% (2008: 23%) in HK Dollars.

As at 30th April, 2009, the fair values of the conversion option of the
convertible preferred shares and the warrants valued by independent
professional valuers amounted to approximately USDO0.13 million (2008:
USD1.5 million) or equivalent to approximately HKS1 million (2008: HK$12
million) and US$0.02 million (2008: USDO.2 million) or equivalent to
approximately HK$0.15 million (2008: HKS1 million) respectively, resulting
in losses arising from changes in fair values of approximately HK$12 million
(2008: HK$37 million) recognised in the consolidated income statement.

DISTRIBUTION
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year (2008: Nil).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 30th April, 2009, plant and equipment with a carrying value of HK$24
million (2008: HK$29 million) were pledged to secure certain banking
facilities and bank loan granted to the Group.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year ended 30th April, 2009, the Group invested HK$6 million
(2008: HKS$9 million) in acquiring property, plant and equipment. This
capital expenditure was financed from internal resources.

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

At 30th April, 2009, the Group, other than ASAT, employed approximately
1,180 employees (2008: 1,880 employees). The Group maintained its
remuneration policy comprising salary and other benefits including share
option scheme as an integral part of the Total Quality Management.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of the Company
are determined by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the
Board, having regard to their individual duties and responsibilities with the
Company, remuneration benchmark in the industry and prevailing market
conditions.

14
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APPRECIATION 2

On behalf of the board, I would like to take this opportunity to express 2ES TR E—EAMBFEEAN—EBEFTRE - &0
our sincere gratitude to all staff for their dedication and good work to the TIE RAEEI#eRRESSAREBARL
Group in the last financial year. Further my appreciation goes to our loyal HE o RATELRSAEBR Z BHEF - #KE
Group's customers, business associates and shareholders for their continual R IRRE 2 B AEBYE - ANEE Y AAXEE
trust and support to the Group which are fundamentally essential to our TEEEMR -

future development.

By Order of the Board AESZMm

Li Tung Lok FE

Chairman 25 [5] 44

Hong Kong, 26th August, 2009 BB —ZEENFNA=-+/"H
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFLEMREEAEBAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Tung Lok, aged 57, is the founder of the Group. He has been an
executive Director and Executive Chairman of the Board since January
1989. He is also a member of Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He has a B. Sc. Degree in Chemical Engineering and over 26 years of
experience in servicing the semiconductor industry. He has been a Director
of ASAT Holdings Limited (“ASAT"), a company currently trading on the
Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol “ASTTY.OB” and an
associated company of the Group, since October 1999 and was appointed
as Acting Chief Executive Officer of ASAT since 1st September, 2006. Mr. Li
resigned as the Acting Chief Executive Officer of ASAT and was appointed as
a consultant to ASAT since 21st August, 2009.

Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick, aged 40, obtained his bachelor's degree

in Engineering from Loughborough University of Technology,
Loughborough, United Kingdom. Mr. Phen has over seventeen years of
experience in semiconductor sales, services and supplies management
through his previous employment with different companies in Hong Kong.
Prior to joining the Group in 2001, Mr. Phen had worked as a Customer
Services Engineer and then a Deputy Director, Account Management of
ASAT Limited, a subsidiary of ASAT Holdings Limited which is an associated
company of the Group during 1991 to 1996, and then from 1996 to 2001
was a Sales Director at SMI Limited, a subsidiary of SDI Corporation, a
company incorporated in Taiwan and listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson, aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since October 1994.
He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

He qualified as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1980 and in Hong Kong
in 1982. He was a senior partner of Richards Butler from 1985 to 2001
where he established the corporate and commercial department. He has
had wide experience in corporate finance and cross-border transactions,
including mergers and acquisitions, regional telecommunications, debt
and equity capital markets, corporate reorganisations and privatisation of
stated-owned enterprises in the People’s Republic of China.

He was a senior advisor to the Board of Director of PCCW Limited, a Hong
Kong-listed company between August 2001 and September 2003. He is
an independent non-executive director of Pacific Basin Shipping Limited,
a Hong Kong-listed company and an executive director of First Pacific
Company Limited, a Hong Kong-based and Hong Kong-listed investment
and management company with principal business interests related to
telecommunications and consumer food products. He also serves as a
commissioner of First Pacific’'s subsidiary in Indonesia, PT Indofood Sukses
Makmur Tbk, an Indonesia-listed company, and as a director of First Pacific’s
associated company in the Philippines, Level Up! International Holdings
Pte Limited, an unlisted company. In November 2005, he became a non-
executive director of India Capital Growth Fund Limited which is listed on
the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert, aged 68, has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since April 2000. He is also the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Sze is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and was
a partner in an international firm of accountants with which he practised
for over 20 years. He is a non-executive director of a number of Hong Kong
listed companies.

Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex, aged 50, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since April 2000. He is also the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Wong is a certified public accountant in Hong Kong, and is the
proprietor of C.B. Wong & Co. Certified Public Accountants. He was the
Chairman of the Executive Committee of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (ACCA) Hong Kong in 1999/2000. He also served as a
member of the Inland Revenue Department Users' Committee from 1998
to 2003. He has over 26 years' experience in auditing, taxation, accounting
and financial management. Mr. Wong did not hold any directorship in any
other listed public companies in the last three years.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Lam Cho Yuk Lily, aged 46, joined the Group since April 2002 and
was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company in March 2006.

She is a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. She holds a B.Sc. Degree in Accounting
and Statistics from University of Southampton and a M. Sc. Degree in
Management Science from Imperial College of Science and Technology,
University of London.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Kwan Chi Kin Wallace, aged 39, holds a Bachelor of Social Science
Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He also holds a Master
of Business Administration Degree from the University of Manchester. He
is an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and also a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Kwan has over 17 years of experience in financial management and
internal control with listed companies and an international audit firm.

SEEMEL - BFessr BE_TETTFMARSN
’Aﬁé%ﬁ#%ﬂﬁ%% c WINRARFBZEZEE
TR YHEARAFMEESRIERZEEK

8 o

EESEE?% R R BRATS e Ag REEY
SHIAREREE A HBERGHMTZER

ARBER0F - WAZREL LM AR ZIEATT
o

E/RBEE - HF0x 0 BTTTFOALERAK
RAEUIFMTES - WITRARRIRAZES
IR YHEARRERREERFMEEG 2K

ThRERBERESAI R TIRABS A ESATZ
EEA @ BER—AAN/ —ZEEFEABEEHFA
RS RASACCABTBLENTREGZER -
MR— AN NEFE_ZE=FHHTEBREHR
BHGEIRESELE - FIEABBA0FET - M
% SR HERLER c TAERBEZFIE
EEEM ETARZERESR o

DNEME

MEELL - RF465% Qfg%ﬁfiﬂﬁﬁ_ﬂﬂ)\
AEBRR -_ZTRF_AEZE/ARRRIZA
ME o

?&ﬁ'ﬁﬁ q:‘]'utFL\u/ua n‘l’Eﬁi 775 E\&%/’% n-l—
MAggs - KIFAHR .Fﬁﬁﬂ EBRB R REat
BELTEN REAREFTHEREERSZERELE
fif o

I_Jn& EEEAE
BERELE  BF350  FEABTXAZHLEHR

BETEN - G E SR AETHEERLT
E2fur {&E%E/%Q?rﬁﬁi NERBNEBEEFHFARE

S AEE RS - Eﬁ?ﬁifﬂ%ﬂz%%tmﬂﬂﬁ
—%Iﬁf’%%aJr%ﬁ%Fﬁ R FEEE KRNI fEm
1758885 o

17



QPL International Holdings Limited

Growing the

e Gateway



DIRECTORS'REPORT
EEDWE

The Board of Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30th April, 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture and sale
of integrated circuit leadframes, heatsinks and stiffeners and investment
holding.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30th April, 2009 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 41.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Movements in the share capital and warrants of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not have reserves available for distribution to
shareholders at 30th April, 2009. The Company'’s reserves available for

distribution to shareholders at 30th April, 2008 amounted to HK$71 million.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus account of the Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
the contributed surplus if:

(i) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at an
aggregate cost of HKS6 million.

Details of this and other movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 30th April, 2009, the percentages of the Group's
turnover and purchases attributable to its major customers and suppliers
are as follows:

Turnover attributable to:
Largest customer
Five largest customers
Purchases attributable to:
Largest supplier
Five largest suppliers

ASAT Holdings Limited ("ASAT") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “ASAT group”) is the largest customer of the Group referred to above.
Details of the transactions between the Group and ASAT group are set out
in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of the
directors, such transactions were carried out on terms no less favourable
than terms available to independent third parties.

Save as aforementioned, at no time during the year did a director, an
associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors of the Company owned more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) have an interest in any of the Group's five
largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Tung Lok (Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 23rd December, 2008)

Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick (appointed on 23rd December, 2008)

Mr. Kwan Kit Tong Kevin (resigned on 23rd December, 2008)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson

Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert

Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Pursuant to bye-laws 102 and 102A of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Phen
Hoi Ping Patrick, being executive Director, and Mr. Sze Tsai to Robert

and Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex, both being independent non-executive
Directors, will retire from office at the AGM and, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election.

As the executive Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Tung Lok is not, by virtue

of Bermuda law, subject to retirement by rotation. However, in order to
comply with the Code Provision A4.2 of the CG Code, which stipulates that
every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years, Mr. Li Tung Lok has agreed to voluntarily retire and be
re-elected at least once every three years. At the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 29th November, 2006, Mr. Li Tung Lok voluntarily
retired from office and was re-elected as an executive Director. Mr. Li Tung
Lok continues to act as the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Li Tung Lok will
voluntarily retire from office and offer himself for re-election at the AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 30th April, 2009, the interests of the directors of the Company and

their associates in the share capital and underlying shares attached to
share options and warrants of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) of the issued
share capital of the Company were as follows:

(a)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Personal

Name of director interests

Bz EARS
Mr. Li Tung Lok FRL%E
- Ordinary shares in issue —BETLER 273794282
Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick ETEE
- Unlisted share option — 3k FEE R E 1,800,000
Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert PEMEE
~Unlisted share option — I FBERRE 300,000
Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson PeERE
~Unlisted share option — I FBERRE 300,000
Mr.Wong Chun Bong Alex THRBEE
~Unlisted share option — I BB E 300,000
Notes:
(a) The family interests of 3,000,000 shares represent the interest of
the wife of Mr. Li Tung Lok.
(b) Mr. Li Tung Lok wholly owns Solar Forward Company Limited,

which owns 18,590,944 shares of the Company.
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ARFCRTEERRERNEE

Percentage
of the issued
share capital
Family Corporate of the
interests AN Company
ERAR
ERTRE
ZEER ARER ZAEDL
3,000,000 18,590,944 295,385,226 3849%
(Notefffzta) (Noteff#z1b)
- - 1,800,000 023%
- - 300,000 0.04%
- - 300,000 0.04%
- - 300,000 0.04%
Htat
(@) 5B #E 25 2 3,000,000 A% A% 17 T5 25 /) 4% 5%
EZET IR -
(b) TR 5EE 2 EWA 2 Solar Forward

Company Limited #5282 818,590,944 %
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING EZHARORIEEKROZERS &)
SHARES (continued)

(b) Long position in shares and underlying shares of an (b) MHEZEzZROREBRRGZES
associated corporation

Number of issued ordinary shares/

underlying shares of ASAT
AT BRTLER/RERAZA
Percentage
of the issued
Personal Family Corporate share capital
Name of director interests interests interests Total of ASAT
37
ERTRAZ
Exps EAER ZEER AR @t BAk
Mr. Li Tung Lok FRS%E
- Ordinary shares in issue —BETEBK 1448010 - - 1448010
- Unlisted share options —3JE i RE 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
- Unlisted warrants (Note) —JEFERE ) 41,800,000 - - 41,800,000
45,748,010 - - 45,748,010 566%
Note:  On 28th February, 2008, Mr. Li Tung Lok was granted a Wit - RZZENFZAZ+/\B  &E&XA
compensation award in form of a warrant to purchase an TRLEERDRIRET - (ERBHEUE
aggregate of up to 41,800,000 ordinary shares of ASAT at an NGB RSB IBIT AR R 2 B
exercise price of USD0.01 per ordinary shares, subject to certain 22E) o ZRLEEABRRREFIRER
adjustments, in consideration for his past and ongoing services LmAR0.013ETT 2 AT E (Al TR ) EA
as the Acting Chief Executive Officer of ASAT. The warrant will be & %4 41,800,000 £ 4k 302 E B ©
exercisable with respect to 20,600,000 ordinary shares immediately, A BNERF 1T {58 2 R AR 4 38 7% 1 20,600,000%
with the remainder subject to certain vesting or performance Timik - HeRRIEZ RS THBIRR
criteria. The warrant will expire on 1st February, 2011 and will be FRIFTHR - BRREZTHEN T ——F
subject to adjustments and other terms and conditions contained ZA—BER  WYHEZIERAIFAEN
therein. R EAD B R GHFETIRR

Save as disclosed herein and for shares in subsidiaries held by the directors ~ BRANMPTIR TR E RESAEE A NREEZER AR
in trust for their immediate holding companies, at 30th April, 2009, none of ~ FEMB AR ZKRMIN - RZZTEZNFMNA =+
the directors or chief executives of the Company, nor their associates, had B ARRES FETHABRFEE2HMEAL
any interest or short position in any securities or derivative of the Company ~ #HERA AR Al EMBE LB (TEREHF K

or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO. BB GH) 2 EMESHSAITE TR 2 F AR msoR
&
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SHARE OPTIONS BB IR
(@) The Company (@ &7
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in AR RIBRHERT S 2 FIBRRERE P ISR
Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. =34 ©
The following table discloses movements in the Company's share TRBEBEEEZENEEFTERARD ) B HE
options granted to the directors and employees during the year: RERZ EH) :
Outstanding Outstanding
Movements during the year at
ERE 30th April, Exercise
Granted Forfeited Transfer 2009 Period
R-BENE
MB=1H
BRAT ERi: EiRK 1] BRATHE i
Category T: Directors
F-R g%
Mr.Kwan Kit Tong 11th May, 2007 2,500,000 - (2,500,000 - - 25th May, 2007 -
Kevin 10th May, 2012
BaEs ZERLERATR “ERYENACTRAR
“2-_%8A1H
11th May, 2007 1,250,000 - (1,250,000) - - 25th May, 2008-
10th May, 2012
ZTEtERAT-R “ZE)\FRAZTRAR
“T-ZFEATA
Mr. Phen Hoi Ping 11th May, 2007 - - - 1,200,000 1200000 18th May, 2007 -
Patrick 10th May, 2012
PaTEE “EERLERAT-R ZERLERATNRE
ZZ-ZERATR
11th May, 2007 - - - 600,000 600,000 18th May, 2008 -
10th May, 2012
“ZEtERAT-R “ZE\ERATNRE
“2-_%8A1H
Mr. Sze Tsai To 11th May, 2007 200,000 - - - 200,000 14th May, 2007 -
Robert 10th May, 2012
RERLE ZTEtERAT-R ZERLERATHAE
ZZ-ZERATE
11th May, 2007 100,000 - - - 100,000 14th May, 2008 -
10th May, 2012
“IRLERAT-R ZE3/\FRATIAZ
“E-—ERA1A
Mr. Robert Charles 11th May, 2007 200000 - - - 200000 14th May, 2007 -
Nicholson 10th May, 2012
PRERE “ZEtERAT-R ZERLERATIAE
“2-_%8A1H
11th May, 2007 100,000 - - - 100,000 14th May, 2008 -
10th May, 2012
ZZEtERAT-A ZZE\ERATHAEE
ZZ-ZERATH
Mr. Wong Chun Bong 11th May, 2007 200,000 - - - 200,000 18th May, 2007 -
Alex 10th May, 2012
TRAKE ZERLERAT-R ZERHERATNAE
“2-_%£8A+H
11th May, 2007 100,000 - - - 100,000 18th May, 2008 -
10th May, 2012
“ZEtERAT-A “Z\ERATNRE
ZT-ZFRATH
Total
f#:t 4650000 - (3,750,000) 1800000 2,700,000
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 1 E))

(@) The Company (continued) (@) A&ATF(E)
Outstanding Outstanding
at Movements during the year at
Date of 1st May, B 30th April, Exercise
grant 2008 Granted Forfeited Transfer 2009 Period
R-RENE R=BENE
LA-A ME=1H
RiLAM I RAT BRI BHEK g8 I RAT i
Category 2
E:
Fligible employees 11th May, 2007 15,250,000 - (3,100000) (1,200000) 10,950,000 14th May, 2007 -
10th May, 2012
aERER “BRLERAT-H ZERLERATIRE
“5-Z5RR1R
11th May, 2007 7625000 - (1,550,000) (600,000) 5475000 14th May, 2008 -
10th May, 2012
“ZEtERAT-A ZZE\ERATHAE
“2-CFIATA
27525000 - (8400,000) - 19,125,000
No options were exercised during the year. FE A SRR T(E o
The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 11th AAFRHRBE_—_ZEZ+EFRA+—H
May, 2007, the date of grant of the share options, was HK$0.71. (AR EERERE)AE B 2 WM EART
BT e
(b)  Associated corporation (b) AEEEE
Pursuant to a stock option exchange program offered by ASAT BEERTUEEEMIEE ZBERER
in prior years, 2,500,000 new stock options were granted to Mr. Li Bt TRIELER_ZEZE=F/\H
Tung Lok on 29th August, 2003, as follows: —+h BER2,50000010 FTEEAAE - SEI1500
™

Vesting
period from Number
vesting Subscription of ordinary
commencement price per share options
Date of date ordinary outstanding at
DEL TN acceptance Date of expiry (i.e. 24th August, 2001) share 30th April, 2009

BRTHRAS R=ZBNE

(=22-%£NA MA=THE

—1+MA)E BREER RTF2LE

EmBH ENR TS ZARE REREHE

29th August, 2003 27th October, 2003 28th August, 2013 1year 0.288 2,500,000
EESEMACTAR CEESETACTEE CE-ZHMACTAA —#
No options were exercised during the year. F BB RS L TE o
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme and warrants as described in the
sections headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and
“Share Options”, at no time during the year was the Company or any of

its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
directors or chief executives, nor their spouses or children under the age
of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF

SIGNIFICANCE

(a) In June 2005, QPL Limited and Talent Focus Industries Limited, the
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered into a Supply
Agreement with ASAT Limited for reducing delivery cycle time
by maintaining minimum inventory level agreed by the relevant
parties. For finished goods produced by QPL Limited pursuant to
forecast provided by ASAT Limited but remained undelivered for
over 3 months, ASAT Limited is liable for paying 66% of sale prices
of these undelivered finished goods to QPL Limited. As agreed with
ASAT Limited, the revenue arising from these undelivered goods is
recognised when the condition meets. During the year, no revenue
was recognised under this agreement.

(b) In 1999, the Group entered into an agreement with ASAT group
under which ASAT group provides the Group with management
information services and in return, the Group pays a portion of
ASAT group's costs associated with its management information
system operation subject to an adjustment according to usage as
agreed between ASAT group and the Group. During the year, no
expense was recognised under this agreement.

Save as aforementioned, no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

No director was a party to a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company within
one year without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 13 OF THE
LISTING RULES

At 30th April, 2009, the Group has obtained secured borrowings of RMB10
million (approximately HK$12 million) requiring an undertaking from Mr.

Li Tung Lok, a director and a substantial shareholder of the Company, to
maintain no less than 20% of the issued shares of the Company throughout
the loan period. Details are as follows:

Outstanding amount

REETH

EEEY

RERNRFE AR - WERRARFSLEEFAMER
A2 2MAEMERBNESR 2 EERITHREBM
RA]ZEARAH

EEMEEARFREEAMNBARRTRAAR
E—FRATAERECEERERIN MR ILEZ
RIEEH

Bz EHRAF1I3EFE 2 IKE

RZZZNFNA=1+H AEBEBSARKE
10,000,0007T ( £712,000,00078 7T ) 2 B EIFEE - &
A D B E B3k BRR R 2 [A) 44 50 A AR RS
BHE - HEARFEBITROTIR20% - B
BT

Revised tenure

BT

Secured short term loan

BHEIPEHER

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30th April, 2009, other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of a director, the Company has not been notified of any other interest
representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company and
recorded in the register of substantial shareholders maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares and warrants.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of the Company
are decided by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board,
having regard to their individual duties and responsibilities with the
Company, remuneration benchmark in the industry and prevailing market
conditions.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY (continued)

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in Note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of the independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws or under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the Company's
shares which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares throughout the year ended 30th April, 2009.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Tung Lok
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th August, 2009
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GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Company is committed to building and maintaining high standards
of corporate governance practices. The Company adopted its own Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “QPL Code”) incorporating

the principles and code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A copy of the QPL Code is posted on the
Company's website.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has applied the principles
and complied with all the code provisions set out in the CG Code except
for the deviations explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company (the “Board”)
assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and

is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising the Group's affairs. Responsibilities of the Board
include but are not limited to the formulation of the Group's strategy and
policies, setting of corporate and management targets and key operational
initiatives, monitoring and control of operational and financial performance,
and approval of major capital expenditures, major investments, material
acquisitions and disposal of assets, corporate or financial restructuring and
significant operational financial and management matters.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management and operations of the
Group's businesses to the executive management under the supervision of
the chief executive officer of the Company (“Chief Executive Officer”). The
division of responsibilities between the Board and the management is set
out in the QPL Code.

Three Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, have also been established
to oversee particular aspects of the Group's affairs. Details of these three
committees are set out below.

The Company has established a policy enabling Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense. The Board will provide separate independent
professional advice to Directors to assist the relevant Director or Directors
to discharge his/their duties to the Company as and when requested or
necessary.
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Board Composition

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time

to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced composition of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the
Group, and that the balance between executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors is sufficient to provide adequate checks for
safeguarding the interests of the shareholders of the Company and to
enable the Board to exercise independent judgment.

During the year under review and up to the date of this Annual Report, the
Board consists of two executive Directors, one of whom is the founder of
the Group and Chairman of the Board, and three non-executive Directors,
all of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Li Tung Lok (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 23rd December, 2008)

Phen Hoi Ping Patrick (appointed on 23rd December, 2008)

Kwan Kit Tong Kevin (Chief Executive Officer and Group Financial Controller)
(resigned on 23rd December, 2008)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Robert Charles Nicholson

Sze Tsai To Robert

Wong Chun Bong Alex

The Directors have extensive industry knowledge and experience in
corporate management, strategic planning, and legal, accounting and
financial matters. Of the five existing Directors, two independent non-
executive Directors are qualified accountants. The biographies of the
existing Directors are set out on pages 16 to 17 of this Annual Report. The
information is also available on the Company’s website.

Throughout the year under review, the Board has complied with Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules in having at least three independent
non-executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each existing independent non-executive
Director an annual written confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all existing independent non-
executive Directors to be independent on the basis of the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, business or family

relationship among the members of the Board or with the former Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Kwan Kit Tong Kevin.
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Appointment, Retirement and Re-election of Directors
Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Bye-laws of the Company, half of the Directors (excluding
Director(s) holding office as executive chairman and/or managing director,
who is/are, by virtue of Bermuda law, exempted from retirement by
rotation) shall retire from office at each annual general meeting of the
Company and shall be eligible for re-election. As the executive Chairman
of the Board, Mr. Li Tung Lok is not subject to retirement by rotation. In
order to comply with Code Provision A4.2, Mr. Li Tung Lok has agreed

to voluntarily retire and be re-elected at least once every three years. At
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29th November,
2006, Mr. Li Tung Lok voluntarily retired from office and was re-elected as
executive Director. Mr. Li Tung Lok continues to act as the Chairman of the
Board. Mr. Li Tung Lok will voluntarily retire from office and offer himself for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company currently does not have a Director holding office as its
managing director.

Non-executive Directors

The non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of not more
than three years, subject to retirement and re-election pursuant to the Bye-
laws of the Company.

Board Meetings
During the year under review, six Board meetings were held. The
attendance record of each member of the Board is set out below.
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Attendance/
Members of the Board Number of Meetings
EEERE HERY, EEEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Li Tung Lok (Chairman of the Board and PR (EFES T ERITHAEE) 6/6

Chief Executive Officer) (appointed on 23rd December, 2008) (R -ZFEZENF+_-H -+ =HEZF)
Kwan Kit Tong Kevin (Chief Executive Officer and Group RAGEIR (7T BAR e B B AR B 3/3

Financial Controller) (resigned on 23rd December, 2008)
Phen Hoi Ping Patrick (Senior Vice President of Sales and
Marketing) (appointed on 23rd December, 2008)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Robert Charles Nicholson

Sze Tsai To Robert

Wong Chun Bong Alex

(R=FFENF+—H-F+=HFE)

2BV (HER & HEEREER) 2/3
(R-FEENFF A= =FEZF)

BUHBITEE

ek 5/6

> B 6/6

TR 6/6
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provisions A.2 of the CG Code stipulates that there should be a

clear distinction between management of the Board and the day-to-

day management of the Company’s business, and that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Throughout the year under review and up to the date of this Annual
Report, Mr. Li Tung Lok is the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Kwan Kit Tong
Kevin had been the Chief Executive Officer until his resignation on

23rd December, 2008, and Mr. Li Tung Lok was appointed as new Chief
Executive Officer on the same day. During the year under review, while

Mr. Kwan Kit Tong Kevin was the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Li Tung Lok
participated in certain daily aspects of the Group's business, such as human
resources and purchasing functions. Since his appointment as Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Li Tung Lok is responsible for overseeing the day-
to-day management and operations of the Group’s business. Being the
founder of the Group and Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Tung Lok’s industry
expertise and detailed understanding of the operations is highly regarded
by the Company. Accordingly, vesting the roles of Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer in Mr. Li Tung Lok adds significant value to the
Company’s business growth while enhancing the efficiency of decision-
making process in response to the changing environment. Given all major
decisions are reserved to the Board and a majority the Board members are
independent non-executive Directors, the Company considers that there is
adequate balance of power and authority in place between the Board and
the management of the Company.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, business or family
relationship between the Chairman of the Board and the former Chief
Executive officer, Mr. Kwan Kit Tong Kevin.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee was established in April 2000 pursuant to the then
Code of Best Practice of the Listing Rules.

Throughout the year under review and up to the date of this Annual
Report, the Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert (being the Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson and Mr. Wong Chun Bong

Alex. Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert and Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex are qualified
accountants with extensive experience in accounting, audit and financial
matters.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with those
set out in the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is
posted on the Company’s website and also available from the company
secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”) on request.
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The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee include:

- assisting the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing

an independent review and supervision of the Group's financial
reporting system, and effectiveness of the Group's internal control

system;

- reviewing the Group's financial information; and

- reviewing the appointment of external auditors to ensure
continuing auditor independence.

During the year under review, five Audit Committee meetings were held.
The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee is set out

below.
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Attendance/
Members of the Audit Committee Number of Meetings
ERZEERE HERE EEEE
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBTEE
Sze Tsai To Robert (Chairman of the Audit Committee) S B (FEERTESL/E) 5/5
Robert Charles Nicholson BoE 4/5
Wong Chun Bong Alex FHRF 5/5

REBFER  BERRESRTITERRE !

During the year under review, work performed by the Audit Committee
included:

- reviewing and approving external auditors' engagement letter in - EHLLERHEBZE T \FEHA=T
relation to the audit of the financial statements for the year ended HIFFEMBRRZB I ZINEZBED
30th April, 2008; TR

ERINEZBMEHBE_ZT/\FIOA
“tHUEFERBRREB T2 ZBG

£

- reviewing external auditors’ audit plan in relation to the audit of -
the financial statements for the year ended 30th April, 2008;
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ENFOA=ZTHLEFENBHRREHT
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- reviewing and discussing with the external auditors significant -
audit, accounting and internal control issues arising from the audit
of the financial statements for the year ended 30th April, 2008;
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- reviewing the financial statements for the year ended 30th April, -
2008 and making recommendations to the Board for approval;

EHRMEFREBE _ZZN\F+A
=t —HEREAFPHERIFH T

- reviewing and approving external auditors’ engagement letter in -
relation to the review of the interim financial statements for the six

months ended 31st October, 2008;

- discussing with the external auditors accounting issues arising from
the review of the interim financial statements for the six months

ended 31st October, 2008;
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- reviewing the interim financial statements for the six months
ended 31st October, 2008 and making recommendations to the
Board for approval;

- reviewing the scope of internal control review proposed by the
external firm of qualified accountants; and

- reviewing and discussing with the external firm of qualified
accountants the report on the review of the system of internal
control of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23rd January, 2006.
Since its establishment, the Remuneration Committee has consisted of
one executive Director, namely Mr. Li Tung Lok, and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson (being the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert and Mr.
Wong Chun Bong Alex.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are consistent with
those set out in the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the Company's website and also available from
the Company Secretary on request.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:
- making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior

management; and

- determining and approving the specific remuneration packages of
all executive Directors and senior management; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors.
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During the year under review, one Remuneration Committee meeting
was held. Written resolution procedure was also adopted to deal with the
business of the Remuneration Committee. The attendance record of each

member of the Remuneration Committee is set out below:
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Attendance/
Members of the Remuneration Committee Number of Meetings
FMEEERE HERY, EEBE
Executive Director HITEF
Li Tung Lok (Chairman of the Board, and TR (FE=ESXR  NTTN\F /1

Chief Executive Officer appointed 23rd December, 2008)

T+ AT =HEZTATRER)

Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBTEE

Robert Charles Nicholson (Chairman of the ReE®(HFHWZESTFE) 0/1
Remuneration Committee)

Sze Tsai To Robert $ER 1

Wong Chun Bong Alex FHRF /1

During the year under review, work performed by the Remuneration
Committee included:

- making recommendations to the Board on the director’s fees
of the independent non-executive Directors for the year ended
30th April, 2008; and

- reviewing and fixing the remuneration packages of an executive
Director (Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick), the Group's financial controller
and the Company Secretary.

In May 2009, a written resolution was passed to fix the remuneration of Mr.
Li Tung Lok (the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer).

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 23rd January, 2006. Since
its establishment, the Nomination Committee has consisted of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex
(being the Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Robert Charles
Nicholson and Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are consistent with
those set out in the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are posted on the Company’s website and also available from
the Company Secretary on request.
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The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

- identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
candidates nominated for directorships;

- assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

- making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular, the Chairman of the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year under review, one Nomination Committee meeting was
held. Written resolution procedure was also adopted to deal with business
of the Nomination Committee. The attendance record of each member of

the Nomination Committee is set out below:
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Attendance/
Members of the Nomination Committee Number of Meetings
REZEERE HERY SEHA
Independent Non-executive Directors BT HHITEE
Wong Chun Bong Alex (Chairman of the TIRBIEELZEEF/E) /1

Nomination Committee)

Robert Charles Nicholson neE 0/1
Sze Tsai To Robert B /1

During the year under review, work performed by the Nomination
Committee included:

- reviewing the annual confirmation of independence submitted
by the independent non-executive Directors and assessing their
independence; and

= recommending Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick and Mr. Li Tung Lok
to the Board for appointment as executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer respectively to replace Mr. Kwan Kit Tong Kevin
who resigned as executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and the
Group's financial controller with effect from 23rd December, 2008.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules for dealings in the securities of the Company by Directors.
All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ transactions
throughout the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group at the end of the year under review and of

results of operation and cash flows of the Group for the year under review.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year under
review, the Directors have:

- selected suitable accounting policies and applied them on a
consistent basis;

- made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable; and

- prepared the consolidated financial statements on going concern
basis and are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, regarding their reporting responsibility is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 39 to 40 of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was reappointed as the Company’s external
auditor at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 22nd
December, 2008 until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting
of the Company. During the year under review, a remuneration of
approximately HK$1.25 million was paid and payable to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu for the provision of audit services, and approximately HK$0.39
million was paid and payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for the
provision of non-audit related services (including review of interim report
and tax services) to the Group.

ESHMBRRZEMLE

EEMRARARUEGAMBERE - MEBABER
RABERRFHRRAEE N O EFEERE 2
FATEAOR - A RASER EEFRE 2 QLKA MR

No=—1}
ﬁ//lbi ©

RSO EFE 2 REMBRRE  EF0 -

- ERVERRASEISIEER

—  {EHEE  ATFMERZHE KGR - &

- REBREEERRGAVBRRAEL T
MBEEEFMERTARZ EH GRS
BHAEBRE AR NFELE 2 EXREE
fi o

ARRINEZEENBE) » MR SHEITREZ
BEEZBRAFNAFREIEA0E 2 B ZBED

HE -

R BB 5 B

Y e WERSGHAMITR_ZZNF+_A
T HBITZARABRBERS LEER AN
NAEZINEZEED - EHEEA R TEBRBE
AREER - REEFE - OHiEE « BERT &5t
BMTT AT ER 3 2 R BOBR A A L S 5 B 5 491,250,000
BITZEFM - ARSLEE « R SETANTTHA
SERTRRE 2 SRR BRT (B R ERN T HRE LR
T AR ) [R) L S A+ K & 151 #49390,000/8 7T

37



QPL International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009 %

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERRE

INTERNAL CONTROL

Code Provision C. 2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the Directors should
at least annually conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group.

The Board recognises that it has the overall responsibility to establish

and maintain a sound and effective internal control system to ensure

the smooth running of operations, safeguard the Group's assets and
shareholders interest as well as ensure the reliability of financial statements
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. In devising internal
controls, the Group has regard to the nature and extent of the risk, the
likelihood of it crystallizing, and the cost of controls. A system of internal
control is designed to manage, but not eliminate, the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute, assurance against the risk of material misstatement, fraud or loss.

During the year under review, the Group engaged an external firm

of qualified accountants to initiate an independent review covering

the overall financial, operational, compliance, risk management and
monitoring control aspects for a substantial part of the Group’s operations.
A report from the external firm of qualified accountants was addressed and
presented to the Board, and reviewed by the Audit Committee and the
Board. The report did not reveal any significant defects.

The aforesaid is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing of significant business, financial, compliance and operational
risks specific to the Group. Relevant recommendations made by the Audit
Committee and the external qualified accountants who performed the
reviews at least annually would be implemented, if appropriate, as soon
as possible, by the Group to further enhance its internal control policies,
procedures and practices.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2 BEN RS

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of QPL International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively

referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 41 to 102, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 30th April, 2009, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of recognised income

and expense and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year

then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable
in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
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assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well

as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30th April, 2009 and of
the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26th August, 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

= AL & N
%/T\ = J'I fm
For the Year Ended 30th April, 2009 HZE —ZEZNFUNA=FTHILFE

NOTES
#iaE
Turnover B
Other income EAb YA 9
Exchange loss, net b 518 ’E
Changes in inventories of finished BURR oo M - BIRR S
goods andwork in progress 2 FE#E)
Raw materials and consumables used  fi FR R # L K SEFE T
Staff costs EEKA
Depreciation of property, Y WERREITE
plant and equipment
Impairment loss on property, Yz - WRRRE 14
plant and equipment BB R

Losses arising from changes in fair value $T4 % gt T A A F(EZH)
of derivative financial instruments EAZEE

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XKMBAR K

Other expenses HibAx

Interest on bank and other loans wholly ZBRAERNEEEE 2 R1TR
repayable within five years HEMERZFE

Share of loss of an associate DL E R REE

Loss before taxation BRARATETE

Taxation g 10

Loss for the year REFEE 11

Loss per share BikEE 12
Basic and diluted AEXRREE

275 337
22 78
(3) )

(4) 1
(135) (164)
(76) (89)
(21) (28)
(50) 1)
(12) (37)
4 _
(85) (98)
(1) 3)
(9) (12)
(95) (43)
(1) M
(96) (44)

(0.13)

(0.06)
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At 30th April, 2009 R =ZEZAFMA =+H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Interest in an associate

Investment in convertible preferred
shares — loan portion

Other receivable

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivable due from an associate
Deposits and prepayments
Available-for-sale investments
Derivative financial instruments

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Trust receipt loans and bill payables
Deposits and accrued expenses
Borrowings

Net current assets
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Notes

it

23
24

25

53 122

5 _
58 122
27 38
34 57
13 27

6 6

4 18

1 13
13 22
98 181
13 38

3 10
35 45
24 23
75 116
23 65
81 187




Notes

it

Capital and reserves BARRHE
Share capital &N
Share premium and reserves A& 19 5 (B R

Equity attributable to the equity QA AEZRIFEA

holders of the parent EihRER
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Accrued expenses FEETE A
Borrowings BE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 41 to 102 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th August, 2009
and are signed on its behalf by:

Li Tung Lok
FEIK
DIRECTOR
BFE

26 61 61
27 12 122
73 183

4 4

25 4 —
8 4

81 187

HREBABIQEZGEVYBRRAKESTTN_F
THENA -+ NBEUESFEHETIE - R TE
ERRBFCHE -

Phen Hoi Ping Patrick
250
DIRECTOR
BEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE
AR A HERRIT R

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2009 HZE —ZEZNFUNA=FTHILFE

(Loss) gain on fair value changes of A ERE AT EEE 2

available-for-sale investments (E518 ) Yezs (14) 15
Net (expense) income recognised HERREERZ

directly in equity (AX) ATz (14) 15
Loss for the year NEFEE (96) (44)
Reserve released upon disposal of HERHHERERE LR 2 FE

available-for-sale investments - (1)
Total recognised expense for the year ~ NFERERAS H42%8 (110) (30)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mEREMER
For the Year Ended 30th April, 2009 & Z= = ZNFHA=+HILFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Loss before taxation BrEERIE 1R (95) (43)
Adjustments for: PR

Interest on bank and other loans
wholly repayable within five years
Share of loss of an associate
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Shares-based payment expense
Reversal of allowance for bad and
doubtful debts
Losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivative financial instruments
Imputed interest income on non-current
interest-free other receivable
Interest income for convertible
preferred shares

Operating cash (outflows) inflows
before movements in working capital
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease in trade and other receivables
Decrease (increase) in trade receivable
due from an associate
Increase in deposits and prepayments
(Decrease) increase in trade and
other payables
Decrease in bill payables
(Decrease) increase in deposits and
accrued expenses

Cash (used in) generated from operations
Income tax paid
Interest paid

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

BARAFRAEHEEL
RITREMERZHE

DIEHME R EER

YES Y
e

M mEkREZ
BIEREE

HERHIHERE 2 Weas

HE—KMB ARz W
PARSCAD 73 20 2 5 35K
RIEARA D

FESMTAATESH
L R
IERENS B HMAERHEZ
HEEFISIA
AR 55 AR 2 FI B

Ret2BEESEHA

RERS ORH)RA

FERD(3EM)
B 5 M E M ESRIER A
FEWEE & N R 2 B HFIA

A (3B 0)

BE RIANRIEE M
B 5 MEMRENTIR

CORA )38 00

eSS
fed AT R ()

REFE)MERES
ERFREH
ERFE

REXK () EREFR

1 3
9 12
21 28
50 21
- (35)
(4) -
= 4
(2) (1)
12 37
(1) -
(9) (12)
(18) 14
8 )
24 5
13 ©)
(2) )
(20) 4
(3) 3)
(5) 9
(3) 20
(1) )
(1) 3)
(5) 16
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
meERenER
For the Year Ended 30th April, 2009 &E=E = NFHA=+HILFE

Note
iy
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Purchase of property, BEWE  HEREE
plant and equipment (6) ©)
Proceeds from disposal of L E R ERE
available-for-sale investments FriS 5038 = 38
Net cash inflow from disposal of HE—XHEBAR]
a subsidiary TSI m AT 29 1 -
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING REEW (Fie) s
ACTIVITIES REFE (5) 29
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEER
New bank loans raised FTILIRITE N 18 -
Repayment of borrowings BEEEE (13) (22)
Net decrease in trust receipt loans ErEBUEE R F 5 (4) (24)

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING RS EE A5 (FT3E)

ACTIVITIES HEFEE 1 (46)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERERRESIEE

CASH EQUIVALENTS WD FEE (9) )
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FYzRERERRELER

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 22 23
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZ2BESRERBELIER

AT END OF YEAR
Representing bank balances and cash BIRITHEBR IR E 13 22
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2009 HZE —ZEZNFUNA=FTHILFE

GENERAL 1.
The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted

company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of

the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section of

the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are the manufacture and sale of integrated
circuit leadframes, heatsinks and stiffeners and investment holding.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2,
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs") issued by the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),

which are or have become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

Reclassification of Financial Assets

HK(IFRIC)-INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(FRIO)-INT 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their interaction

The application of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how
the results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior
period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2009 B ZE =TT NFMNA=+HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 &1
(Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) -

HKAS 39
(Amendments)

INT 9 &
HK(FRIC) - INT 13
HK(FRIC) = INT 15
HK(FRIC) = INT 16
HK(IFRIC) -

INT 17

HK(FRIC) - INT 18
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Improvements to HKFRSs!
Improvements to HKFRSs 20092
Presentation of Financial Statements?
Borrowing Costs?

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements*

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation?

Eligible hedged items*

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate?

Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters®

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations?

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions®
Business Combinations*

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments?

Operating Segments?

Embedded Derivatives®

Customer Loyalty Programmes’

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate?

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation?®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners?

Transfers of Assets from Customers?
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009
except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st July, 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2009, 1st July, 2009 and 1st January, 2010, as appropriate

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2010

6 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30th June, 2009

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2008

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st October,
2008

g Effective for transfers on or after 1st July, 2009

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group's
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition
dates are on or after 1st May, 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect
the accounting treatment for changes in the Group’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary. The directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the other new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2009 HLZE —EZNFUNA=THILFE

50

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
included applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the

year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interest in an associate (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, interest in an associate

is carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the
associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in

that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)

is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in
which the item is derecognised.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transactions

cost directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group's financial assets at FVTPL are embedded derivatives
separated from the host contract and other derivative financial
instruments.

Derivatives embedded in financial instruments or other host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and

characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts,

and the host contracts are not measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are deemed
as financial assets held for trading or financial liabilities held for
trading. Changes in fair values of such derivatives are recognised
directly in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,

loans and receivables (including other receivable, investment

in convertible preferred shares — loan portion, trade and other
receivables, trade receivable due from an associate, bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss (see accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as

a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been impacted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in
fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group

entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified into other
financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payment through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, trust
receipt loans and bill payables, and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue cost. Warrants issued by the
Company that will be settled by a fixed amount of cash for fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments are classified as
equity instruments.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and

the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share option granted to employees

The fair value of services rendered determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any,

is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to retained profits (accumulated losses).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title
has passed with reference to the sales contracts/shipping terms.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimate
future cash receipts throughout the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset's net carrying value.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of transaction. At each balance
sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costin a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance
sheet date and their income and expenses are translated at

the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate
component of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the foreign operation is disposed of.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or asset is realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when
it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Borrowings costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future period.

The following are key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Determining whether property, plant and equipment are impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating

units to which property, plant and equipment have been allocated.

The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
If the actual future cash flows are more or less than expected,

a reversal or further impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment will arise. An impairment loss on the property, plant
and equipment of HK$50 million is made for the year ended 30th
April, 2009. At 30th April, 2009, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment is HK$53 million. Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in Note 14.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

As described in Note 16, the directors of the Company use their
judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
For derivative financial instruments, assumptions are made based
on quoted market rates adjusted for specific features of the
instrument. Details of the assumptions used are disclosed in Note
16.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4,
(continued)

Impairment of other receivable

The other receivable due from a former subsidiary (Note 17) is
subject to review for impairment whenever events or changes

in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The carrying amount of other receivable is reviewed
periodically with reference to availability of objective evidences
and indicators including any significant financial difficulties of

the former subsidiary in order to assess whether the recoverable
amount has declined below the carrying amount. If circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of other receivable may not

be recoverable, an impairment loss may be recognised in that
period and is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Impairment of trade receivables

The assessment for impairment of trade receivables of the Group

is based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of
accounts and on management's judgement at each balance sheet
date whether there is any objective evidence that trade receivables
is impaired. A considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional allowances may be required.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group

will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the

return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and

equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings described in Note 25, net of cash and
cash equivalents, and equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As a part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the issued share capital.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends as well as obtaining finance from banks, if
necessary.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments

6. SWMTA
ST EER

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group'’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, investment in convertible preferred shares, other
receivable, trade and other receivables, trade receivable due from
an associate, derivative financial instruments, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables, trust receipt loans and bill payables
and borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are

set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner. There has been no significant change
to the Group's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and its
monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of respective
group entities, which are mainly Hong Kong dollars ("HKS")
or United States dollars (“USD"). However, the Group has
purchases, expenses and borrowings transactions which
are denominated in Renminbi ("RMB”). The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management closely monitors foreign exchange
exposure to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including cash and ER Rk EWZIE (B

cash equivalents) RekERREIER) 65 106
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 4 18
Derivative financial instruments TTHESRIT A 1 13
Financial liabilities cHas
Amortised costs B HR AN 78 112

MR EE B ZERBER
AEEZIZcRIABEITHEER
& AmRELERKRE - EAMEREA -
B REMBWIR - BRBERRES
PE - TEERTIA  RITEHEERESE -
B 5 REMBENTIEA - EREIBEEREE
NEBNEE - WESRMTAZFHBEN
MERAFM AN EE - TXES B ESRTA
Bz B R anfa] FR Rz F R Z BOR e
EREEEREEZFRR  AREREE
B REGEE R - AREEE ZTS
R EE MG ERR 2T AL EEAE
) o

w5 E e

@ EEmE
AEBETENRBLLE HEKE
E BERRZTIZUHEBEEE
By (ABT(NETD&E
(RN BE)EHE - A - A&
BEBE RAXRBEERZEUAA
RE(TAR®FE - AEERE
WEFTBSMNEE PR - A - &
EETEEEIMNERR - AR
REBNES B RO IREUE B 151

61



QPL International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009 &}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PN:

SRR MY ot

Iy =7

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2009 HLZE —EZNFUNA=THILFE

62

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EMI A
Financial risk management objectives and policies MKEREEEERBEE)
(continued)
Market risk (continued) SR ()
0) Currency risk (continued) () B (E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s major foreign REBEFEINEHEELEER
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at BERBRHRAHMZEREENT

the reporting date are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
BE =N
2009 2009
—EEAE ZEENF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEETT
RMB N 1 25 25
Currency sensitivity analysis BEEEGRES T

The following table details the Group's major sensitivity
analysis of a 5% increase and decrease in HKS or USD
against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their

translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates a
decrease in loss where the HKS or USD strengthens 5%
against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the
HKS or USD against the relevant currency, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the loss, and the amounts
below would be negative.

TRAMBITHETLE AR EF
KTBswR s AEEEFEHRED
e EERFRESEEASER
HNE R ES - (R SwBURE L & -
It A E B B H INEE R 2 4 32 0] %
BT - REDTERED
KRB M LAINE BB 2 ¥R
B - I HLANEETE R @500 B B ¥ A S
HE 2 FEREETHAMS - TR
EHRRAB T FE T K AR &S K F
BE5%EF 2 BER D - BILsETH
S E%E - EEEB Y
ENEEEER W NRZFIER
HEAa%E -

Loss for the year FEEE
RMB ARE 1 1

A 5% increase and decrease in HKS or USD against RMB
do not have a material impact on the other equity of the
Group.

BLRETLEARKER EFHT
BR5% N & H AN B 2 S K
BEAFPE -



FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)

(if)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to investment in convertible preferred shares. The
management will consider hedging significant fair value
interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate on interest-bearing financial assets and financial
liabilities. Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly
balance with banks which are short term in nature. Interest-
bearing financial liabilities are mainly trust receipt loans and
bank loans which carry interests at either Hong Kong prime
rate or standard lending rate in the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC"), plus a margin. It is the Group's policy to keep
its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to variable interest rate for non-derivative
instruments at the balance sheet date. For variable-

rate interest bearing financial assets and borrowings,

the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of asset
and liability outstanding at the balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year. A 10 and 100 basis point
increase or decrease are used when reporting interest

rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rate in interest bearing financial
assets and liabilities respectively.

The aforesaid increase and decrease of interest rates do not
have a material impact on the loss for both years and other
equity of the Group.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk in relation to
its available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments which are measured at fair value at each
balance sheet date. The management manages this
exposure by reviewing these investments regularly.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iii) Equity price risk (continued)
Equity price sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
assuming that the change in prices had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied to the exposure
to price risk for the Group's available-for-sale investments
and derivative financial instruments at that date.

A 10% change in equity prices represent the management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible changes in prices.

If the prices of the respective instruments had been 10%
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant:

loss for the year ended 30th April, 2009 decrease/
increase by HK$0.6 million (2008: decrease/increase
by HK$3 million) as a result of the changes in fair
value of derivative financial instruments; and

investment revaluation reserve would increase/
decrease by HK$0.4 million (2008: increase/
decrease by HKS2 million) as a result of the changes
in fair value of available-for-sale investments.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis are
unrepresentative of the inherent market risk as the pricing
model used in the fair value valuation of the derivative financial
instruments involves multiple variables and certain variables are
interdependent. Besides, the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 30th April,
2009 and 2008 in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying value of those assets as stated in the consolidated
balance sheet.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to other receivable,
trade and other receivables and trade receivable due from an
associate as set out in Notes 17, 19 and 20 respectively. The
amounts of trade receivables presented in the consolidated
balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group is
responsible for determination of credit limits and credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures are carried out to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
and other debt at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The board of directors has delegated the management to be
responsible for assessment of financial position of individual
debtor and for determination of monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The
management will remind debtors of the amount of outstanding
receivables and the dates of settlement to advise them to settle
receivables promptly.

As disclosed in Note 15, the Group's associate reached an
agreement in principle with a majority of its creditors on the

terms of a consensual financial restructuring of the obligations

of the associate. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the

Group continued to make sales transactions to this associate, the
management of the Group is closely monitoring to ensure that the
associate will settle according to the agreed credit terms.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit-ratings.

However, the Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk on its
trade receivables. As at 30th April, 2009, 30% (2008: 34%) of trade
receivables is due from an associate and 22% (2008: 19%) of trade
receivables is due from the other four largest customers of the
Group. The Group is also exposed to concentration of credit risk on
its receivable from the former subsidiary of HK$5 million (2008: nil),
as described in Note 17.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group's operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group's policy
is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants and to arrange
additional banking facilities, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.

Liquidity and interest rate tables

6.

EMITA®
MEEREE B ERBEE)

B ELEE

EEERBDESRRE - ARBEEERRF
FEEERRRANAE RERE AR
B URAKENRGEERHESY
BERSRENBNTE - AEEZHBER
REREZBRMBEMRDHESTRKAR
HETREEZNZIEN - L RBEBINRTT
RBRE BREFSTENHESHE N
ENEEHLREERNRBESFER -

TRHAFBAEESRABIHRTALY
FHEBER - SIETTESRAGEME - T&
TIRBAREE AR BRI R 2 &F B
TRBEZANRRETEMRER - TX
BREMNEEATHEERE -

RBEERFIER

Weighted  Repayable Total
average on  Lessthan 2to3 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand 1year years  cashflows amount

MEFLY  ERERE AERRS
i &8 15/ 23 REAE BREE
% HKS'M HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM

BEAT  ABATL BEAT  AEAT

2009 —EENE
Trade and other payables Z o REMERTR - 2 11 - - 13 13
Trust receiptloans - variable ~ S3EMIEEH— 28 63 - 2 = = 2 2
Bill payables eSS = - 1 - - 1 1
Accrued expenses B - - 30 4 - 34 34
Borrowings - variable EE-78 60 10 14 2 3 29 28
12 58 6 3 79 78
2008 —280E

Trade and other payables B o REMERTZE - 8 30 - - 38 38
Trust receipt loans - variable  EFEMEER 28 57 - 6 - - 6 6
Bill payables ES: - - 4 - - 4 4
Accrued expenses [E:tEA - - 37 4 - 4] 4]
Borrowings - variable EE-Z8 75 10 14 = = 24 23
18 91 4 - 13 12




FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

the fair values of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;
and

the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using
prices or rates from observable current market transactions
as input. For an option-based derivative, the fair value is
estimated using option pricing model.

The carrying amounts of short-term financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate their respective fair
values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial
instruments.

TURNOVER 7.
Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable for

goods sold by the Group to outside customers less sales returns

and discounts.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 8.
Geographical segments

The customers of the Group are currently located in the United

States of America, Hong Kong, Europe, PRC, Malaysia, Singapore

and other Asian countries. The geographical locations of the

Group's customers are the basis on which the Group reports its

primary segmental information.
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8. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZSHEER)
Geographical segments (continued) @& ()
Consolidated income statement for the year ended 30th April, 2009 BE_ZZNFOA=Z+THILEFEZEZE
sk
United Other
States of Asian
America  Hong Kong Malaysia ~ Singapore  countries Consolidated
At
ESE] B j B FRED g EHER &4
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
BEET BERT EERT BEET  BEER
TURNOVER EX8
Segment turmover NREEE B 2 2 113 30 23 62 275
RESULT S
Seqrent result P (1) (3) - (12) (2) (1) (3) (22

Impairmentloss on property, plant 41 + &Rk

and equipment HEEE (50)
Lossesarising from changes i~ FTESRBITA

farvalue of derivative financial ~ ATEEF

instruments [ivd 12)
Imputed interestincome on GG 8 ARl

non-curent interestfreeother — FUEZHEEFSMA

receivable 1
Interestincome forconvertible —— AEREER 2

preferred shares HEKA 9
Gainon disposal of asubsiciary ~ HE-FHBAFLZ

Y 4

Unallocated corporate expenses ~ ADELAERT (15)
Interest on bankand otherloans ~ ARAERZEY

wholly repayable within [BEZHITR

five years A EzHE 1)
Shae of loss of an associate HBERAERE e
Loss before taxation BimER (%5)
Taration il 1
Loss or the year TEEER (%}
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical segments (continued)

8. ZHRERE)

HE 2 EB (&)

Consolidated balance sheet at 30th April, 2009 R-TBZENFNWA=THZHGEEEERRBEX
United Other
States of Asian
America  Hong Kong Europe PRC  Malaysia  Singapore countries Consolidated
Rt
EL] EE 50 HE  ERER wmg = &a
HK$'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M
BERT BERT EEBT  FEEBEn HERAT  FEEEn BEEn
ASSETS BE
Seqment assets AR
Allocated Eol 3 20 - 1 5 2 6 4
Unallocated KR
Propery, plantand equipment 1% - ERER(E 53
Inventories 75 bij
127
Bank balances and cash EGET )k 13
Other unallocated assets HRATLEE 16
Consoldated total asets FREERE 156
LIABILITIES =1
Unallocated liabliies AORERE 83
Consolidated total iabilties FRERER 83
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8. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZTHEERE)
Geographical segments (continued) @ H ()
Consolidated income statement for the year ended 30th April, 2008 BE_ZZ N\FOA=+HIEFEZEFE
hEnES
United Other
States of Asian
America  Hong Kong Malaysia ~ Singapore countries Consolidated
£ ERER b &&
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEAT BEAT ABATL BEAT
TURNOVER gX8
Segment tumover AREEE i 7 3 6 4 4 & 3
RESULT ES |
Segment result P | - B) = (1) (1) 1 3 (1)
Impairment loss on property, plant 9% + g% Rk fE
and equipment LRERR @)
Lossesarising from changes i~ FTESRBITA
farvalue of derivative financial ~ ATEEF
instruments [ (7)
Interestincome forconvertible — ATHEREER 2
preferred shares FSMA 12
Gain on disposal of available-forsale HETEHEERE
nvestments bl ¢ 5
Unallocated sundry income RATHERA I
Undllocated coporate expenses — RARMLET (7)
Intereston bankand otherloans ~ BRTERZH
wholly repayable within ERZETR
five years AfERHIE 6]
Share ofloss of an associate PEBRELNIBR (12)
Loss before taxation BHAEE )
Tasation i )
Loss for the year TEERR i
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZIERE)

Geographical segments (continued) HhE 5D (&)
Consolidated balance sheet at 30th April, 2008 RIZZZNFHA=+HZGEEEEAER
United Other
States of Asian
America  Hong Kong Malaysia ~ Singapore countries Consolidated
A
*H g4 y G- VT g B £
HKSM HKSM I ! HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEAT BT SR AT BEAT BEET  ABAT  BEAT
ASSETS gE
Segmment assefs DHAE
Allocated EAk 6 41 1 12 6 ) 16 84
Unallocated KOE
Property, plantand equipment 9% - B RHE 12
Inventories RE 38
244
Bankbalances and cash KTEBRRRS 2
Other unallocated assets HRDRERE E
Consoldated total assets GREELE A
LIABILITIES =15
Unallocated liabilties AOREE 120
Consolidated total labiltes CABGEE 120
In view of segment information is disclosed based on the BRAEERTDERANEE R P MM
geographical locations of the Group's customers, capital addition HE BEZETNFNA=THILEFE
of property, plant and equipment amounting to HK$6 million 26,000,000 75 (= FZ )\ : 9,000,000
(2008: HK$9 million) for the year ended 30th April, 2009 are not TL)ZME - WBERBREERNREBRRS
unallocated. fig
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment BEEMEMRE D 25 ERE ERE(E A
assets and additions to property, plant and equipment, analysed by NEWEE  MERFHE2ZATHOT -

geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amount Additions to property,

of segment assets plant and equipment

DEEEREE WEYE - MBERRE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—22hEF —EEN\F —BEAF —ETN\E
HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M
BEET BEET BEET BEABTT
United States of America 3= 1 1 - -
Hong Kong BB 46 85 - -
PRC M 80 158 6 9
127 244 6 9
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2009 B ZE =TT NFMNA=+HIEFE

9.

10.

72

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZoHER®E

Business segment EBKDE

The Group operates solely the manufacture and sale of integrated AEBELEHERHEERKERSIZ
circuit leadframes, heatsinks and stiffeners. E -« BUEABE R INoRIR 2 575 ©

OTHER INCOME 9. HgA

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHRHERE
investments 2 Wias = 35
Interest income for convertible AR B e 2 T B
preferred shares (Note) WA (Ktst) 9 12
Imputed interest income on non-current BB R B EAM R
interest-free other receivable FIBZHEE R BWA 1 -
Sales of by-products and scrap BIE B R EER S 1 30
Sundry income FETEUT A 1 1
22 78
Note:  The amount includes approximately HKS4 million (2008: HK$8 Miat - SCBUER B S AT AR ST A2 B S A
million) interest income from convertible preferred shares, which 4,000,000/ 7T (= FZ /4 : 8,000,000/
was settled in form of ordinary shares of ASAT, the Company's 7T)  WAARRZMERRLERI 2 E
associate, in lieu of cash. B AREIR S UER -
TAXATION 10. BE

The charge comprises: HIEE R B1E -

PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR R EE RIS AR (1) (1)
On 26th June, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed RZZEZNFRNAZ+ARB BELEE
the Revenue Bill 2008 and reduced corporate profits tax rate from BRTT N\FRAKMIER - AFFEF
17.5% to 16.5% which is effective from the year of assessment PR 175%AEE165% WE TN\
2008/2009. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2008: —EENEFRREERER - BEFEH
17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. TR IR 7R [E A 5t I SR Bt i AR B 2R 16.5%

(ZZTN\F 1 175%)51 8 -
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the HRAREEE TESBLE 2 ERIA RN
individual companies comprising the Group operating in Hong MG EHEATIREE - WA ERES
Kong incur tax losses for both years. MSTEL B -



10.

TAXATION (continued)

10.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

On 16th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law") by Order No. 63 of the
President of the PRC. On 6th December, 2007, the State Council
of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations of the New Law.
The New Law and Implementation Regulations has changed the
tax rates from 33% to 25% from 1st January, 2008 and from 15%
to 25% progressively over 5 years for certain subsidiaries from 1st

January, 2008.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
taxation per consolidated income statement as follows:

BIE(®)
B Ff 7 M B 2 2 2 B B
B 2B -

RZEZEF=A+"8  FRENAPEE
B %@fﬁﬁ¢.i%%?mﬁqﬁm

%E%ﬁﬁm£EMMW ﬁﬁﬁﬁi&
B ETHBARZREH_FTT

NE— B —B#EM33% FNAZE25% @ = THt
BRRAIZHEANR_ZEZENF—A—HiE
AFENR15%EFF FFAZE25% °

AR RIAS HEER A Y et R 5 ER T AT
ERHRET

Loss before taxation

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5%
(2008: 17.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose

Tax effect of non-allowable losses of offshore
operation

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in PRC

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Effect of share of loss of an associate

Tax charge for the year

Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 28.

BRERIEE

BEBHEHTE165%
(Z2ZNF : 175%)
STE A

TAHIB R 2R T

BERBBAZ REFE

iidec S A N Bt
BRo MG E
R EZE BT
TRAREZZE
RERRBBRZ
BT E
DIEBERBEEZ
62

AEEHIAX M

(95) 43)
16 8
@3) (12)
2 9
(7 )
m 0
7 @)
M @)

(1) (1)

BREER B FEH AN 528 ©
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2009 HLZE —EZNFUNA=THILFE

11. LOSS FORTHE YEAR

11. XNEEFE

Loss for the year has been arrived at after
charging (crediting):

Reversal of allowance for bad and
doubtful debts
Auditor’s remuneration
Operating lease rentals in respect of premises

12. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the
ordinary equity holders of the parent is based on the following

data:

AEEBEEHRGIA)

THIBE
REREE
) (1
Gl 2 2
BFzEFAnEex 12 13

12. SREE
FRREBEREE AR FREAREETD
B RYIEERTE

Loss for the purposes of basic loss
per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of calculating basic loss
per share

The calculation of diluted loss per share for both years does not
assume the exercise of the share options and warrants of the
Company because such assumption would result in a decrease in

loss per share.
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RUEtESRERERZ

BE HK$96ME B & 7T HKS44MBE 878 7T
ARG B BRERER
LB
767,353,549 767,303,534

HEME 2 SRBEEEY L TBRT
B R R 2 AR R BRI - R AL
BRAEERSRERALD -



13.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2008: five)
directors were as follows:

13.

Patrick
HP Phen

sy
HKSM

EEREEME

EEMe

ENSENAG(ZEENE : AR)ES
BZEEZHMEIT

Robert

Robert Charles
TTSze Nicholson
2B REE
HKS'M HKS'M

BEAT HBEAT BEBT
2009 “ZEhE
Fees we 17 = - 05 04 03 129
Other emoluments Hi4
Salaries and other e kit
benefits & = 12 04 - - - 16
11.7 12 04 0.5 04 03 14.5
2008 —EENE
Fees we 122 - - 05 04 03 134
Other emoluments Hiode
Salaries and other He Rt
benefits B = 17 = 0.1 0.1 0.1 20
Share-based payment PARRAn AR
PANE: S = 07 = - - = 07
122 24 - 06 05 04 16.1

The emoluments payable to directors of the Company as approved
by the Board on the recommendation of the remuneration
committee, are having regard to their individual duties and
responsibilities with the Company, remuneration benchmark in the
industry and prevailing market conditions.

In both years, no emoluments were paid or payable to the directors
as an inducement to join the Company and no compensation was
paid or payable to directors or past directors for loss of office.

BNARBEZ M 2EFMEES
2B B RERBRER AR A ZERIB
BREBR TEXFHEERERMLAE
EEHE -

RAEFEA - AN 5B &M S e
NFEZEZMEERIMARRT]Z BB -
MECSEN TEFKAES Z BB

f& -
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEREEMEH)

(continued)

Employees’ emoluments EEME

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals included TERSFTMATBE=2(ZTZNF :
three (2008: two) executive directors of the Company, whose MB) RN ARNTES  EME 23R E
emoluments are included above. The aggregate emoluments of X HHEMB(ZZEENF : =R)&Ko 5
the remaining two (2008: three) highest paid individuals are as A T2 Bl REELN T -

follows:

Basic salaries, allowances and other EAFH G - 2R RHEAM
benefits-in-kind EWH = 2 5
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BE 2N T 547

2009 2008
—EEhF —FE)N\F
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAE BEAZ

HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001#7T — 2,000,000/ 7T = 2
2 3
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

CosT

At 15t May, 2007
Additions

Disposals and write-offs

At 30th April, 2008
Additions

Disposals and write-offs
Disposal of a subsidiary

At 30th April, 2009

ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSS

At 1st May, 2007

Provided for the year

Impairment loss

Eliminated on disposals
and write-offs

At 30th April, 2008

Provided for the year

Impairment loss

Eliminated on disposals
and write-offs

Eliminated on disposal
of a subsidiary

At 30th April, 2009

CARRYING VALUES
At 30th April, 2009

At 30th April, 2008

B
RZEZ+FHA—H

RZZZN\EFRA=+AH
NE

L& RHisA
HE—RHBAR

R-ZEZNEMA=1H
RETERAESE
RZZZ+FRA—H
KEERE

REBE
8 TR S 158

R-FR/\FHNA=1H
RERRR

REEE

8 TR S 158

E—RABA RS

R-FENFENA=1H

RAEE
R-ZBAFEA=1A

R-ZT\FEA=TH

Leasehold

improvements

ES3]
HKSM
AEBT

14.

Furniture,
fixtures
and
equipment

i - B
Rt
HKSM

BERTL

Motor
vehicles

nE

Moulds,

toolings and

Plantand production
machinery films
I

HER TARK
®E £ERER
HKS'M HKS'M
BEEL BEER

72 168 3 662 354 1,259
= = = 4 5 9
- - - @) - 9)

72 168 3 657 359 1,259
= 1 = 1 4 6
- - (1) - - (1)
= (16) = (92) (75) (183)

72 153 2 566 288 1,081

55 161 2 545 334 1,097
4 4 = 16 4 28
= = = 20 1 21
- - - ©) - 9)

59 165 2 572 339 1137
5 2 = 1 3 21
4 = = 38 8 50
- - (1) - - (1)
= (15) = (90) (74) (179)

68 152 1 531 276 1,028
4 1 1 35 12 53

13 3 1 85 20 122
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14.

15.

78

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following useful lives:

Leasehold improvements 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-8years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Plant and machinery 6 — 12 years
Moulds, toolings and production films 6 years

During the year, the directors conducted a review of the Group's
property, plant and equipment and determined that the property,
plant and equipment were impaired due to decrease in sales
arising from the global financial crisis since late 2008 and the
uncertainty of the outcome of ASAT Financial Restructuring, as
defined in Note 15. In the light of the uncertainty of the outcome
of ASAT Financial Restructuring and the expiry of the forbearance
agreements among ASAT group and its lenders (as described in
Note 15) in August 2009, the cash flow forecast has been prepared
on a basis that no future sales to ASAT group are anticipated for the
forecast period commencing August 2009. Sales to ASAT group for
the two years ended 30th April, 2009 and 2008 were HK$82 million
and HK$89 million and accounted for 30% and 26% of the Group's
turnover, respectively. Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$50
million (2008: HK$21 million) have been recognised.

The recoverable amounts of the relevant assets have been
determined on the basis of value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved

by the management covering a one-year period with a projection
of another five years, and discount rate of 17% (2008:16%). Cash
flows in the last three-year period during the projection period is
extrapolated using a zero growth rate.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

14.

15.

Yz - BBRIRE®E)
L BERREER HUERAR
R E - HAAERMT -

LES 33 84
R - KB REE 54
RE 54
eSS AE 65124
T TAREEARR 64F

FR - EFHAEEZME  BRRTE
ETRF  BREREB-ZET)/\FREH
2R RMAMEEEE Y - N LM
15SFTRE M AR AEREE IR IS EME 2 4
FBMmE  EBEREHEHERE - AR
MARREMEE LB BERAZER - M
FEISATI S K U R BRG] L 2 IEHA(E
NBZEER—_ZTLEFENLEH  BER
SR NIEESHE ST AEN\ARKBZ
TR R T g R R EBELEM AR
HECZHERE -REBEE_TTNFR_-
ZENFNA=+THIEMEFEAR - [
R EEBE T 2 $HE 5 Bl 482,000,000 7T
589,000,000 7T * HHE R AL E & X5
2 730% K 26% o A - B ERBEEE
50,000,00078 70 ( ZZ Z J\F : 21,000,000/
JL) °

EREEZARESRERNETEER
BEMETE - KtEERRBEEEEHE
Wik E — FH Ryl =5 B B{E TR R 2 Bt
HEENRSREFAAKLI7%(ZFFN
F o 16%) 2ITRE - FRABEAREK=F
HrHReRERNTRERRES -

BE N AR

Listed investment outside Hong Kong

Cost of investment (Note 9)
Share of post-acquisition losses and reserves

Quoted value of listed investment

RERA(H1iE9)
DEWE R 2 BB RHE

BRI EHERE

B LTREZER

23 19
(23) (19)
12 59




15.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Interest in an associate represents the Group's 43.22% (2008:
42.88%) interest in the issued ordinary share capital of ASAT, a
limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares
were listed on the NASDAQ prior to 17th April, 2008. ASAT and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of assembly
and testing of integrated circuits in the PRC.

On 25th March, 2008, ASAT received a notice from the NASDAQ
Listing Qualifications Panel determining the delisting of ASAT's
securities from the NASDAQ market and the trading of its shares
were suspended at the open of business on 27th March, 2008. On
17th April, 2008, ASAT announced that its American Depository
Shares ("ADS") started trading on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin
Board under the symbol “ASTTY.OB" and were delisted from
NASDAQ.

On 2nd March, 2009, ASAT has announced that it entered into
forbearance agreements with its lenders. On 1st June, 2009,

ASAT announced that it has reached an agreement in principle
with a majority of its creditors on the terms of a consensual
financial restructuring of the obligations of ASAT group (“ASAT
Financial Restructuring”). Under the terms of the forbearance
agreements, the lenders agreed to forbear from exercising their
rights and remedies against ASAT group arising out of certain
designated defaults until 30th August, 2009, subject to certain early
termination events. The outcome of ASAT Financial Restructuring is
still uncertain as of the date of the approval of these consolidated
financial statements. As a result, ASAT has not published any
financial statements and not prepared any management accounts
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the year
ended 30th April, 2009, other than the information disclosed
below.

The following details have been extracted from the unaudited
consolidated management accounts of ASAT prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA:

15.

Financial position B AR R,

Non-current assets EREEE

Current assets MENEE

Current liabilities mENEE

Non-current liabilities EREEE

Net liabilities FEE

Group's share of net liabilities of REBDREBERE 2
the associate FaE

BENTRER(E)

BN RS AEEEREEES T
A S 2 B PR A Bl ZE 4k X B 217 E @A AR
KZ4322%( —ZFZ )\ : 4288% ) e
BRI ZBOR_ZEENENA++H
MEXEEZHEESFEEDNREHBTRER
(NASDAQ) ET7 » kX R EMB AR EE
R B R B IR A KB SURTS -

RZZBENE=A=+HH ' &HE R
NASDAQ &/ NMEZ B - BBREE R
H LK 7 FBENASDAQTIE R IR - &
H-EENEF=A - t+tHHARRERR
BiSSEX s BRNEFEE - RZTZTN
FOA+EH @ ERXEMHETETLESU
[ASTTY.OBZ RERAEEBIHINT F Bk FE
48 E W ENASDAQRR I ©

RZZTZNF=AZH ' #RXEMHEH
BEEFRANRTLERENGZE - R=_FFh
FRA—H  #EEXEMEBEKRISE
ALK CER B 2 H BB 5 B AR ([ 42
WX BB EM ) FFCERK R AN % - 1R
BREBENBEZIGER  ERARERE
THEEEBNTTERSHHERNEE
Z M RABREL AR - XA TR
WIEEHRY  BEEZTTAFNA=T
Bl RHtET R FRETHREE
B MARBERERERNYBEEZIER -
L - B T XFTIREEE RSN - G4 A &
BREEEGTMAGRMZEEV RS
ERTEBRE_TTNFOA=THLLSF
B2 EMSBHRE - MEARREAEER
B o

AT EM TR B R RIEF B ERTAD
RERMEBMBHRELENRRZ AL
EREAEERA

31st October,
2008
—EEN\F

30th April,
2008
—EEN\F
MA=+H
HKS'M
BEAT

tA=+—8
HK$'M
HEBRT

434 485
376 390
(485) (453)
(1,286) (1,302)
(961) (880)

79



QPL International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009 &}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BE R MR

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2009 HZE —EZNFUNA=THILFE

15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Results

15.

Turnover ]

Loss for the period/year REAR,FE AR
The Group's share of loss of the associate for the year ended 30th
April, 2009 amounted to HK$9 million (2008: HKS$12 million). The
share of loss of associate for the year is taken up by reducing the
carrying amount of the Group's net investment in ASAT, comprising
the investment cost in and the loan portion of investment in
convertible preferred shares of ASAT (Note 16), to nil as ASAT is in

a net liabilities position. Additional share of loss was made for the
current year attributable to interest on the convertible preferred
shares of ASAT in the form of shares. The Group has discontinued
the recognition of its share of losses of ASAT. The unrecognised
share of losses for the year ended 30th April, 2008 amounted to
HKS$43 million and the accumulated unrecognised share of losses
amounted to HK$383 million as at 30th April, 2008.

80

BENTER®)
¥iE

Six months
ended

31st October,
2008
BE-2TN\F
+A=+—8H
WEREA
HK$'M
BEER

Year ended
30th April,
2008

707

(117) (128)

REE-_ZTNFONA=ZTHLEFE &
& [E FE A 52 B 2 A B Z 518 59,000,000
To(ZZZ )\ : 12,000,000/ 70) o B4
RN ERKFABERRL  FADEHER
RSB TIRE AR BRER 2 IRE R
REEREZM:TE REFHEEAER
FEREE MK SR AR B ST IR 2 18 B K AR R 3%
BEERBD (HiE16) - ERAFE K H L%
R AR B LR 2 RGNS EE
B AEBERIEEREDIHEERXZE
B -#HEZZ/\FUNA=Z1+HILFEZ
REER D (B8 543,000,000/ 7T * M —F
ZNFONA=Z+HZEFAERDGEER
1] A383,000,000/8 7T °



16. INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED 16. TERBRELERIKRE TTELWMIA
SHARES/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In July 2005, the Company entered into a securities purchase
agreement with Asia Opportunity Fund, L.P. and its affiliate funds
("AOF"), which held approximately 28.9% of the issued ordinary
shares of ASAT, and ASAT in relation to a USD15 million financing
(equivalent to approximately HK$117 million) for ASAT, of which
the Group contributed USD7.5 million (equivalent to approximately
HKS$58 million). ASAT issued 300,000 convertible preferred shares
for a total price of USD15 million (equivalent to approximately
HKS$117 million), representing an issue price of USD50 per
convertible preferred share, to be purchased by AOF and the
Group in equal proportions. In October 2005, the Group invested
USD7.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$58 million) for
150,000 convertible preferred shares for the equivalent amount

at an issue price of USD50 per convertible preferred share at a
preferred dividend rate of 13% per annum, payable semi-annually
in arrears. Each convertible preferred share will, at any time and
from time to time, be convertible, at the option of the holder, into
ordinary shares of ASAT at an adjusted conversion price resetting
equal to USD0.065 per ordinary share (equivalent to USD0.975 per
ADS), subject to customary adjustment for share splits, dividends,
re-combinations and similar transactions. The contractual exercise
period for conversion option is from 27th October, 2005 to 4th
May, 2011.

Investment in convertible preferred ARG B IR E
shares — loan portion —ExEHm 43 38
Less: Loss allocated in excess of cost B DB BT
of investment DN (43) (38)
Derivative financial instruments: PTEEmMITA :
Investment in convertible preferred ARG B IS E
shares — conversion option — kiR 1 12
Investment in warrants BRI E = 1
1 13

R-ZZEZTRF+LAH » AR A E Asia
Opportunity Fund, LP. & H B B X &
([AOF ] B HHEXBEBITEBRLY
28.9% ) K B ST & B4 4K 3L 52 15,000,000
ET(HEER49117,00000078 7T ) (AR A&
& 7,500,0003 7T ) (#8 & 54 4958,000,000
PBIT)RI M BHBE Mg - SR EITRE
% £315,000,0003% 7T (#8E 72 49117,000,00074
JT) Z.300,000% AT # iR 2 e AR (BB 1T (B A
FRE A AR B AR50 TT) © HAOF R ANE
ELEHELOEE - RN_FTRAF+A -
AEEBRETESRATRRE TR0
JCA & 7,500,000 7T (#8 & 7 £958,000,0007%
JC) B8 A 150,0000% AT AR AB ST RS - 1B R AR AR
BEREGF13%  FEFHN - FRATRK
B ATRER RN RIF A AR BIEAR
BRI RE TR L BA0065E T (HE
RETEFEBH0.9755 7T ) @i B%IK T 2
LR - M ERARDIFE - RS -
BHAHERERZELEEAE - 1k
BEENAGNTESRA=-ZZSTRAF+A
—t+t+tHE-ZT——FAHAMWEA -
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16.

82

INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED
SHARES/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

At any time on or after 4th May, 2011, ASAT shall, at the option of
the Group, redeem, in whole or in part, any outstanding convertible
preferred shares, in cash. The convertible preferred shares shall

be redeemable, in cash, at the option of ASAT, in whole or in part,
at any time at a price per share equal to the higher of () the issue
price, plus an amount equal to the accrued and unpaid preferred
shares dividends to the date of redemption; and (i) the aggregate
fair market value of ASAT's ordinary shares into the which the
convertible preferred shares are convertible. The effective interest
rate applicable to loan portion of the preferred shares of ASAT

was estimated at 36% per annum. In the opinion of the directors,
the fair value of the put option of the Group and the call option of
ASAT were immaterial at the balance sheet date.

As arrangement fee for the issue of the preferred shares, ASAT has
agreed to issue to each of the Group and AOF five-year warrants
to purchase 2.5 million ordinary shares, exercisable at a price of
USDO0.01 per ordinary share (equivalent to USD0.15 per ADS). In
addition, ASAT issued to each of the Group and AOF an additional
five-year warrants to purchase 7.5 million ordinary shares,
exercisable at a price of USD0.01 per ordinary share (equivalent to
USDO0.15 per ADS). Accordingly, the Group was issued warrants to
subscribe for a total of 10 million ordinary shares of ASAT. On issue
of the warrants, no sums are payable to ASAT by the Group. The
consideration of the Group was in form of the conversion, on a
dollar-for-dollar basis, of its account receivable due from ASAT on
27th October, 2005. The contractual exercise period for warrants is
from 27th October, 2005 to 27th October, 2010.

The fair value of the straight loan feature of the convertible
preferred shares was determined by using discounted cash flow
calculation based upon a group of debt instruments with similar
credit rating and structure and the observable financial data of
ASAT. The effective interest rate for the straight loan feature was
estimated at 36% per annum at initial recognition.

The fair value of the conversion option of the convertible preferred
shares and the warrants were determined by using binomial
model.

AHBRELERRE TESMIA

(#&)
HASEEE  SERXBAR-_FT——Fh

A A AREER - LR T ABREE
SAERB D REE 2 AT B - %
RICGEE > IRERREARS T AEE
2R D AT AR B A - EEAR(ERA
ERTIESE : )ETE - ZNEERE
Bl BB Rt RANEBRRBRE 2508
R (ii) 7% 7T 2 B 48 5 B8 1 2 B4k SO SR A
ZRFEARE - BRAREERETRE
BN 2 BERFIR G RETF36% - EFR
o NEERE PR KRB RER
RERZATELTENR -

ERBITEERZZHER  LEXAE
D RIE AL B RAOFEETT A FHAR MR ERE
A B & £2,500,000 8 Sk SCE BA% - 171F
BAERYEER001 =T (HERERIBT
FEH0.15FTT) © WA - BE D FlR A S
B & AOFEE TR L F B R AR RS - Al BE
E 7,500,000/ Lk 3L AR - TEEATR
T mA%0.01ZE T (FHE R FRIEFLESH0.15%
JL) o Bt - AEEER T o RRERE H
AI 5388 10,000,000 R B4k X 2 EBIR - AEE
THZERRERR  AEERIBZHE
IR SRS - NE B 2 R E A AZEK
XAZZEZERF+A -+ EBERARZER
RRUSEEEREANE - RREENE
NTFERE—EERFTA-_t+EtRAZE=
T—FF+HA-++H-

AMREERCEEEREERS HA
FEDRE-—HAAEEEEEENRRERE
ZEBTE - AR SCA] R ERES 2 B 7%
Hig WAFTRBSREEETE - BEE
REERN S ERERERI R G AE
F36% °

AR SR i 2 R BR RAE RD D S R AR
& HRFEDFEA-ZEAEAETE -



16.

INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED 16. TEBREERIKRE TTELMIA

SHARES/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%)
(continued)
Key inputs into the binomial model were as follows: “IERER T EBTLENT ¢
At 30th At 30th
April, 2009 Aprl| 2008
R=-ZBZhE j
mA=+H
Share price R%A(E USD 0.065 UsD 035
0.065% 7T 035%7T
Volatility of share price RENUE 150% 120%
Risk free rate R B ) = 0.91% 2.49%
Dividend yield RS 0% 0%
Option life of conversion option BARIE 2 2 AR HR 2years 3 years
26 3F
Option life of warrants RNLHERE 2 B E Y 1.5 years 2.5 years
155 254
As at 30th April, 2009, the fair values of the conversion option of RIZETNAFNA=1H BBIEEE
the convertible preferred shares and the warrants valued by Vigers EfEMTESHTEET GERBR AR
Appraisal & Consulting Limited, a firm of independent international (B 2 AT AR B 25 AR BE T HR AR B 12 4 %
assets valuers, amounted to approximately USD0.13 million (2008: R Hﬁ ﬁ% B2 NFEDRIA A130000%E T
USD1.5 million) or equivalent to approximately HKS 1 million (2008: —EE)NF SOO 0003 7T ) S ABE AR 49
HKS$12 million) and approximately USD0.02 million (2008: USDO.2 1,000,000/ 7 ( ZFZ \F : 12,000,0007 7T )
million) or equivalent to approximately HK$0.15 million (2008: K #9720, OOO%TE(_ Z\4F : 200,0003
HK$1 million) respectively, resulting in losses arising from changes JL) AR E R4 150,0008 7L ( ZFE/)\F -
in fair values of approximately HK$12 million (2008: HK$37 million) 1,000,000 7T) * A :FTE”@JF &2 EE
recognised in the consolidated income statement. #912,000,0007 7T (ZF & J\ £ : 37,000,000

/%E)E,E/\Iiv?l/:l\”&mi%ﬁﬁwu °
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17.

18.

84

OTHER RECEIVABLE

On 20th February, 2009, the Group entered into an agreement

to dispose of a wholly owned subsidiary, Talent Focus Industries
Limited (“TFIL") and the disposal was completed before 30th April,
2009. TF has agreed with the Group to repay the outstanding
amount due to the Group of HK$7 million, which is unsecured

and interest-free, in seven monthly equal instalments from 1st
September, 2010 to 31st March, 2011. The fair value of the other
receivable at the date of disposal of TFIL was estimated to be HKS$4
million which is determined based on a discount rate of 29.7%. The
carrying amount at 30th April, 2009 included imputed interest of
HKS1 million.

INVENTORIES

17.

18.

H i fE W R IE
R-ZZBENE=-_R=+H  NEBEEF—
Bz HEXENBARREEEER
2RI([BE]) HEER-_ZTThFMA
= THAIERK - BEREHR-Z—ZFN
A—HZ2-_Z—F=A=1+—H%KAMN
HRARES tHAREEERANER 2
RIEZBEL IR B FIE7,000,000/87T o RH
EREER  HaERFEZ AFERKE
£4,000,00078 70 * JHIRIT IR K29 7%E T °
R-BZAFENA=TAZEEEREE
EF51,0000008 7T °

rE

Raw materials and consumables BB EOHFE SR
Work in progress ES e
Finished goods BRI o

19 26
4 7
4 5
27 38




19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. ESREMEWKIE

Trade receivables 2 SRR 32 A
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts W RIEEEREE (1) 3)
31 51

Proceeds receivable in respect of disposal of ~ HEMB AR 2

a subsidiary — due within one year (Note 29) FEUFTIS FR08
——FRENE(HE29) 2 -
Other receivables At EUGRIE 1 6
34 57

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days to AEBGETESEP 2EEHRNF30E90

its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade

receivables net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts at the BB 2R DT ¢
balance sheet date:

B - RN&EEB - BSREFIRMNRRIER

Within 30 days 30BN 14 25
Between 31 and 60 days 31260H 7 15
Between 61 and 90 days 61Z290H 5 10
Over 90 days 90BR AL 5 1

31 51
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19.

86

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Before accepting any new customer, the Group will apply

an internal credit assessment policy to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and define credit limits by customer.
Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade
receivables and considers the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality. Included in
the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$8M (2008: HKS 12M) which are past due
at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

19.

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors which are past
due but not impaired:

%%&Eﬂﬂﬂ?ﬂ& RIE (48)

RERTAFEEI - AEESLHTA
=B ZBE IR ERFPZEEER
WHITESRFZEEE -EREERYE
REGEWFEBECEEER WARAIL
mafiNERECESREGEAER Y
EEER -AEEBEZRWFEBELESHT
£ ¥ BR TH 4218 48,000,000/ T (Z T )\
F 112,000,000/ 7T ) HA FR R B HAE g B 4K
SR EHRERIEBREZRIE - AE
BN ER I S AR A AR

BB ENERE 2 B 5B RGIA 2RIk
DT -

Past due within 90 days #HEI90H A
Past due over 90 days #HAQOH A _E
Total a5t

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired are generally recoverable.

The following is the movement in the allowance for bad and
doubtful debts:

8 12

RIEAKEZESR  CORBELERES
B 5 WA — AR AT DAY

KEEREZZDOT

At beginning of year REH

Reversal of allowance for bad and REAREEE]
doubtful debts

Atend of year RER

Included in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables with aggregate balance
of HKS 1 million (2008: HKS3 million) which have been in severe
financial difficulties.

RIRER B E P B IE 4B 45 54 51,000,000/ 7T
(ZZZ/)\F : 3,000,000567T) 2 EREIEZ
SERFZE  BERXFIARRBESER
£ o



20.

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLE DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 20. EWHENT2EZFIE

The Group allows a credit period of 90 days to its associate. The REEGBTHERAR ZEERROB « R
following is an aged analysis of trade receivable due from an HEH BWEEATESHRIE(TER)
associate, which are non-interest bearing, at the balance sheet ZEREEDITAR :

date:

0-90 days 0£90H 13 27
The trade receivable due from an associate is not past due at the REFER - BUEEE AR 28 S HIERR
balance sheet date. The Group does not hold any collateral over BER o AR BB LR A SR T B A
this balance. o e
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21. AMHEHERE

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong, HE FTRATE S
at fair value BN E 4 18
At the balance sheet date, the available-for-sale investments are REHEH  TJHESREZRATEYEE -
stated at fair value, which have been determined based on bid WREERMISMHREABERE °

prices quoted in an active market.
Particulars of the investee company are as follows: IR &Rl 2 BT ¢

Proportion of
nominal value of

Place of Class of issued share capital
Name of company incorporation Principal activities shares held held by the Group
FEERH FrEBFAEEZ
NRER A AL 3t 2 TEXEK 2 &5l ERITRAEELSH
Melcolot Limited Cayman Islands Provision of network Ordinary shares 34%
(“Melco”) (formerly infrastructure
known as Melco solutions and
LottVentures Limited) services
HERYARAR HERHS REBEER Eimik 34%
(FERY]) Y
R
Melco is a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The FEIRY R R FTRIZEIR 2 ET AR °

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
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22. BANKBALANCES AND CASH 22,
The bank balances of the Group carried at prevailing market
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 3% (2008: 0.72% to 3%) per
annum.

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23.
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables, based on the
payment due dates, at the balance sheet date:

RITERRES
NEE 7 RITEBIEFF001%E3%(—F
T\EF 072%E3%) ZBITTIHHRET B o

B 7 REMEMNTRIR
RIEFMARE - EREARARGEE B
ZEREEHIINT -

Trade payables B S FIA
Within 30 days 308 A
Between 31 and 60 days 31260H
Between 61 and 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90R A E

Other payables E i e FRIE

The credit period on purchases of goods is ranging from 30 to 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables within the credit timeframe.

88

3 11
2 5
1 4
2 8
8 28
5 10
13 38

BEZEEHR/0ENR - REBEREFH
BRBREEER - BARMAENKIALE
BHEEHR



24.

25.

TRUST RECEIPT LOANS AND BILL PAYABLES 24. ERENBERKREMSGE

Trust receipt loans ZERMEE R 2 6
Bill payables AN 1 4
3 10

At the balance sheet date, bill payables are non-interest bearing REZER - BRNERIETEE - BRER30
and aged within 30 days. Trust receipt loans carry variable interest HEAR o EEliR ERCAOZEFRET B -
rates and the effective interest rates (which are also equal to HEEBAEEEREOFNE)N T EFF6%
contracted interest rates) range from 6% to 7% (2008: 5% to 9%) ZE27%(ZFZ)\F : 5%E9%) °
per annum.
BORROWINGS 25. fBE

Bank loans repayable within one year (Notea) ZER—FRNEEZ
RITER (M ata) 12 13
Unsecured bank loan (Note b) ERIRRITE R (M 77ED) 6 -
Loans from a director repayable on demand ~ ZBIREK(EE 2
(Note ¢) —REEER(MaE) 10 10
28 23
Unsecured loans EIIRE TR 16 10
Secured loan BHEAER 12 13
28 23
Carrying amount repayable: FERTFRIBRREA
On demand or within one year BRERKIN—FREE 24 23
More than one year, but not exceeding BiE—FELRRE
two years 2 -
More than two years, but not more than BAMEELRAS
five years 2 -
28 23
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B BB EE AR
under current liabilities —FANEE 2 FIE (24) (23)
4 _
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25.

90

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(0)

The loans are secured by certain plant and equipment of the
Group and carry interests at either standard lending rate in the
PRC or Hong Kong prime rate, plus a margin. The range of effective
interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest rates)

on the Group's variable rate borrowings are approximately 6% per
annum for the current year (2008: 5% to 9% per annum).

The bank loan is unsecured, bear interest at Hong Kong prime rate
plus 0.5% per annum and will be repayable by instalments up to
April, 2012. The weighted average effective interest rate on the
bank loan is 5.8% per annum.

The loans are advanced from Mr. Li Tung Lok, a director and a
substantial shareholder of the Company, which are interest-free,
unsecured and repayable on demand. Subsequent to the balance
sheet date, the director agrees not to demand the repayment in
full or in part of the loans due from the Group on or before 5th
August, 2010.

Borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out

below:

25.

BE®@)

Bt -

(a)

EERERSEER 2WH

UL ERARE B 2 5 T 188 KRR ER
o WIRPBEEREENERESHE
HANESMEFANE - AEEZZEE
B AEEEBRNE(BEREGHFIR)
BENATFon(ZTT)\FE : FFE5%
Z=9%) o

RITERBERRT  RESHERFE
mgﬁm%ﬁ%vm%%a@vﬁi:
T——FMAARIL - RITERZINEF
HERFESTF58% °

ERTARNRAEEREERRFREL

\

LEEEH  ARE - EERRRERE
B-NEERR ZEFERETER=
Z-ZF\ARRRZAMBEREELRE
Bpras R 2 2B O ER -

LERAIN 2 E

BEAHESHTIIT

Borrowings denominated in RMB

UNARKIIEZEE

12 12




26.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: R :
Ordinary shares of BIREESHETT
HK$0.08 each BRI
At beginning and FNk
end of year FR
Redeemable preference  EREE0028 T
shares of HK$0.02 each ZAEEELR
Issued and fully paid: BETRERRA :
Ordinary shares of FIREE08HSTT
HK$0.08 each 2L
At beginning of year F1
Issue upon exercise RITE R REE
of warrants REET
Atend of year FIR
Warrants

26.

Number of shares

BRH#AE
2009

IR

Nominal Value

HfE
2009

—ETHhE
HK$'M
HERET

1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000 120 120
500,000,000 500,000,000 10 10
767,353,549 767244211 61 61

- 109,338 - -
767,353,549 767,353,549 61 61
R
RBE-ZTT/\FHA=THLFEA

During the year ended 30th April, 2008, registered holders of
109,338 warrants exercised their rights. At 30th April, 2008, the
outstanding warrants of HK$232,535,389 entitling the holders
thereof to subscribe for 130,637,859 ordinary shares at an initial
subscription price of HK$1.78 per share (subject to anti-dilutive

adjustments) were lapsed on 14th October, 2008.

B109338DRRIEFE 2 ERIEFF ATER
EZERN - RZZTEENFUA=+H " &
A B AR AT IR 2 PR AR 3B 3 232,535,389
TL ZERREERERBARIRER78
%nﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁ%éﬁﬁﬁmﬁwzmﬁw
%ﬁwﬁmww%%x BR - ZERAE
FERZEN\F+ATHBLRR -
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27. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES 27. RO RERREE

Capital Investment Share
Share Contributed redemption revaluation options Accumulated

premium  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve losses
EXEE REEf BhE
RoEE EHER it it fife  RiER

HKS M HKS M HKS M HKS M HKS M HKS M
BEAT AEAT BEET BEET EBEET  BEER

subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the Company’s

shares issued as consideration.

(Note)
(i)

At Tt May, 2007 RZER+ERA-A 148 40 12 2 - (54) 148
Reserve released upon disposal of ~ HE IS ERA A

avallable-forsale investments B 7l = (1) = - (1)
Gains on fair value changes of AEHELENTE

available-for-sale investments 280 s = 15 - - 15
Loss for the year FNER - - - (44) (44)
Total recognised income FREERRA

(expenses) for the year (Bx) e - 14 - (44) (30)
Recognition of equity-settled RRALE AR

share-based payment BERE 250 = - 4 - 4
At 30th April, 2008 RZZE\FNA=TH 148 16 4 (98) 122
Loss on fair value changes of RHERENTE

avallable-forsale investments  EH7 18 = (14) = = (14)
Loss for the year FREE = = = (%) (%)
Total recognised expenses FRERAAS

for the year ek = (14) - (%) (110)
Transfer toretained profits BRI - = (1) I -
At 30th April, 2009 RZEEAENA=1H 148 2 3 (193) 12

Note:  Contributed surplus represents the excess of the net assets of Fo BRRBIERMKENE AR EEFER

BARNTHERERREMETRN ZE
B -



28.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 28. ELEHBEE

At the balance sheet date and during the year, deferred tax REEBRFR NEBERATESEL
liabilities (assets) have been recognised in respect of the temporary REEEARLHIEEE(BE) :
differences attributable to the following:

Accelerated Tax
tax depreciation losses
B EITE HEEE
HKS'M HKS'M
BEBT BEBIT
At 1st May, 2007 RZEZLFRHA—H 12 (12) =
(Credit) charge to consolidated ~ R&R&UEsx (FI1%)
income statement R ) 2 =
At 30th April, 2008 RZEZENFWOA=+H 10 (10) =
Effect of change in tax rate %HIEEJJZE’@ 1) 1 -
(Credit) charge to consolidated ~ R&R&UEsx (3I1%)
income statement R @) 7 =
At 30th April, 2009 R-ZEZERFEMA=1+H 2 (2) -
At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of REEH  XEBERBA 2RBEE
HK$533 million (2008: HK$515 million) available for offset against 533,000,000/ 7t ( ZZ =&\ : 515,000,000
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect SIT) Al BYER SR R T - Bt EEE
of HK$13 million (2008: HK$57 million) of such losses. No deferred MR IE R TE & 22 13,000,000 L (=2 E )\
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$520 £ : 57,000,000 7T ) - 1B R EETEAIR
million (2008: HK$458 million) due to the unpredictability of future 2 S | T 3 8% B H £2£520,000,0008 7T (=&
profit streams. Tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. =)\ : 458,000,000/ 7T ) HERIE LI 1B &

E o RGBSR R ERIAEE o
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29.

94

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

29.
As disclosed in Note 17, the Group disposed of TFIL to an

independent third party for a total consideration of HK$4 million.

Net assets disposed of:

Property, plant and equipment

Bank balances and cash

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables due from an associate
Deposits and prepayments

Trade and other payables

Accrued expenses

Amounts due to the Group (Note 17)

Gain on disposal
Total consideration

Satisfied by:
Cash
Consideration receivable (Note 19)

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration
Bank balances and cash disposed of

The net assets of TFIL at the date of disposal were as follows:

EHEEEHME -

YER Y ]
RITHEBRIRE

&

B 5 MEMmRKRIA
YR 2 N R 2 B HFR
R R Fa N RIA

B 5 NEMEN A
FEEt &R

e AR B RIA(HaL17)

H & Weas
RRE
BATH AN

He
R B (A7 19)

HEMELARSIRAFHE

RERE
EHRERITESRERAS

Consideration receivable was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable in two instalments in July and August 2009 and were
subsequently settled.

The subsidiary disposed of did not contribute significantly to the
Group's cashflows or operating results for the year ended 30th
April, 2009.

HE—RMHBLQF

AP FEV7AIREE - AREER—2BL
FE=THERRE
RENHERRZEEFENT ¢

48X {8 54,000,000 7T °

N = W Ww = b

(5)
(5)
(4)

—

2T

ERERE

YA (B A IE 150 - %Q&%#
FEEARNASTBMIN -
fit o

HECHBAREAEREEZE ST NF
MA=ZTHLEFEZHERENALE XA
WEBERER ©



30.

31.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30.
At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding capital
commitments as follows:

BEAERE
REER  REBERBITZEREAEN
™

Capital expenditure in respect of BHEBEIL DA
acquisition of property, plant and BRELGETT
equipment contracted for but WmcPREL
not provided in the consolidated M - e R
financial statements - ¥ N

LEASE COMMITMENTS 31.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments in respect
of premises for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

HOEE

REEBR  AEBRBETATREZELH
WAEAREFINZEREREES E
ZEEBRTE

Within one year —&FR

In the second to fifth year inclusive E=HERE
(BIEERME)

Over five years A

Leases are negotiated for a term of twenty years for certain
production facilities in the PRC and terms of one to three years for
other premises with fixed monthly rentals.

9 10
35 35
70 78

114 123

BPBEETAERBMS @ BOR_+F
HEER > MEMEFTHEORME-—Z==4F
MR - YEETSABEEHESE -
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32.

33.

26

RETIREMENT AND PENSION SCHEMES

The Group participates in two defined contribution schemes
which are an Employee Retirement Scheme registered under the
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”)
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in
December 2000. The assets of these schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.

All full time employees are eligible to join the ORSO Scheme

after completion of three continuous months of service with

the Group and opt to contribute a fixed percentage of 3% or

5% of their monthly basic salary whereas the Group contributes
an equivalent amount to that scheme. After December 2000, all
employees exceeding a specified income range are required to
join the MPF Scheme and contribute a fixed percentage (currently
5%) of their relevant income but cap at a maximum amount

of HK$ 1,000 per month to the scheme, which contribution is
matched by the Group. For employees joining both schemes, the
total contributions made by each of the Group and the employees
which exceed the mandatory contributions required by the MPF
Scheme are paid to the ORSO Scheme as voluntary contribution.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC government. The
Group is required to contribute certain percentage of payroll costs
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

Contributions to the above schemes for the year ended 30th April,
2009 made by the Group amounted to HK$2 million (2008: HK$2
million).

PLEDGED ASSETS

At 30th April, 2009, plant and equipment with a carrying value of
HK$24 million (2008: HK$29 million) were pledged to secure certain
banking facilities and bank loan granted to the Group.

32.

33.

RAREESFE
AEBE2ERETERERTE - 25IRR
BB RAG BRI B R 2 B BRINFE
(TBERAKAEDER _ZZETF+_H
R 58 B 1 R & 5T R PR 3L 2 58 il 14
AiEEAE([wEEsE8]) - ZFFEZ
BEAXFAEERTUES A EAEH
BEDFRRA -

FrE2BEERBEREAEER=EA
B EERDHEBZERIRGTE - WARE
RE K B % 2 3%8k5% & TE A 5 b1
;o MAEEBIABR B Za8EH
R -RZZEZTZTF+=-A% AR
HiEEWABEZEEH AL RARES
2 REBBARAZEEE D GRE
R5%) HErEELHE - MERERAE
A1,000%7T + MASE AR €28 ED
HE - YRS EZMBETENEEMS
AEEREESAZHEFRELHBES
FT 2] BT AR 78 58 il 5% 2 B BB AR IRET
2l fEBBRAER -

AEBZHBEEEHESMFTEBAER
ZBERRBRIGE - AEBARRKE
MErEfFLFHERAETED L 2 H]5K
BB A REMEA - A& E LRGN E
ZESEEREHEEERR -

BHE_ZZAEWMA=1TRHILEE K&
B[] k7l 5+ 2 R E ££42,000,00078 7T (=
ZTZ )\ £ : 2,000,000/ 7T) ©

EEIKH
RZZEZNFWOA=Z1+H EKEE
24,000,00078 70 ( ZZ Z J\F : 29,000,0007%
TO) Z MR REEERF - UEBERTFASE
BzHTHRITRE RIBITER -



34.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme:

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 29th November,
2006. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the eligible persons
(“Eligible Persons”) as defined in the Scheme with the opportunity
to acquire interests in the Company and to encourage the Eligible
Persons to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and
its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole. The Board of Directors of the Company may grant options
to Eligible Persons, including, but not limited to, the full-time
employees or directors (excluding Mr. Li Tung Lok) of the Company
and subsidiaries (the “Eligible Employee(s)”) or his or her associate.

The share option granted by the Company at nil consideration is
exercisable at any time for a period determined by its directors
which shall not be later than the day immediately preceding the
fifth anniversary of the date of grant, where the acceptance date
should not be later than 28 days after the date of offer. The exercise
price (subject to adjustment as provided therein) of the option
under the Scheme shall be determined by the Board of Directors
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of
the shares; (i) the closing price per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; or (iii) the average closing price per share
as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s daily quotation sheet for the

five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
options.

As at 30th April, 2009, an aggregate of 19,125,000 share options
granted under the Scheme remained outstanding representing
2.5% of the issued share capital of the Company. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which the options may be granted
under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company at the date of approval of the Scheme. However,
the total maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options must not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted

to any one grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue in such 12-month
period up to and including the proposed date of grant, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. No option shall
be granted to the Eligible Persons if the aggregate value of shares
which may be subscribed in respect of outstanding options exceed
(a) in case of an Eligible Employee, 5 times of his or her then gross
annual salary and (b) in any other cases, HKS5 million, or any other
amount approved by the Board of Directors either generally or on
a case by case basis.

34.

URGBBER 2 AR S
IR A B E AR B

RER-_ZFE EF+-—A=-TILhBRBZ
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ERALT(EEBALBEARRER
MEE  YBBAERALI/ARABRE
BRERER NSRRI AR R R EBH
ZEBE ARBEFEARGERALE
HERE - MxEAERALEREERR
R)ARBIREMBARIZ 2RIEEHNES
(TEREFRLEL)([EEBREEDHE
BEAL -

ARRNEEFRNBELZBREARES
BT 2 M AR T - AT E R A
BRAEERERPERRE—B - ME
MBI T EENIEZIR M HEZ288 - 1B
BT BT IR LB 2 T EE (e RIE
ZATEIFTREEHAR ) mESSATER
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RELBES(ARLEB) BT ARE
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R AEALCERBIATHRERRN
P SRR HEZ FHE -

R-BBAENA=11H - BEZTEE
i 2 & $£19,125,00017 B AR #E BT ARTTIE -
HERARREBEITIRAN Z25% ° BIKZ
AERHZBEREMSRZBRD RSB
TEBEARRN I EZTEER ZE %
1TREAR10% © SATM - R FTA ARTTFEIEAEE
TEMABITZRODESEBE  TRBE
ARBINE 2 BEBEITRA30% o REARRD
AR ELAHE - A28 A B ARE
B B A A FTER B AR FT S & 2 IR 15
HE THBEARARREEEEELA
Bz 2@ HEARZEETRD 1% - HE
BRALTZEARITEBREERETEZ
ARERNDESEBEQ(EEEREEM
B)EBER 2 FEH RS Rb) (B E A EAD
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 34. HUROBERZAARREZ (5
(continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company's share TRFEEERREMIFTAEARN R BERE
options held by the directors and employees during the year: NERZ EH :
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise  at 1st May, Movements during the year at 30th April,
Optiontype  Date of grant price 2008 Granted Transfer Forfeited 2009
R=ZEN\F R=ZBENF
EA-H EREH mMA=+H
BREER R B fTEE e RATHE R B 2Rl i RATE
HK$
BT
Directors 11th May, 2007 0.70 4,650,000 - 1,800,000 (3,750,000) 2,700,000
5= RZZEZ+FRAT—H
Employees 11th May, 2007 0.70 22,875,000 - (1,800,000)  (4,650,000) 16,425,000
B8 RZZEZ+ERA+—H
27,525,000 - - (8,400,000) 19,125,000
Exercisable atthe end of theyear  RFARFAI1T{E 19,125,000
The following table discloses movements of the Company's share TEREREERREMBFEARBERER
options held by the directors and employees during prior year: KEZEE)

Outstanding Movements during Outstanding

Exercise at 1st May, the year at 30th April,

Option type Date of grant price 2007 Granted Forfeited 2008
j RZETNF

FRE mA=+A
BREER  ERAM R B BRK AR

Directors 11th May, 2007 0.70 - 4,650,000 - 4,650,000
5= RZZE+FRA+—H
Employees 11th May, 2007 0.70 - 24,675,000 (1,800,000) 22,875,000
EE RZZZLFRA+—H
= 29,325,000 (1,800,000) 27,525,000
Exercisable atthe end of the year  AELRA[{7fE 19,550,000
No options were exercised during the year and prior year. FAREFHEITEREAE
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34.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Share options were granted on 11th May, 2007 to different
counterparties. Two-third of total share options can be exercised
at any time from the date of acceptance whereas one-third

of total share options can be exercised on and after the first

34.

anniversary of the grant date, provided the grantee has been in
continuous employment with the Group for one year, until the
date immediately preceding the fifth anniversary of the grant date.
The fair values of the options determined at the dates of grant using
the binomial model were approximately HKS$5 million.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair values of
share options:

Closing price of the Company's

shares on grant date HK$0.70
Exercise price HK$0.70
Risk-free interest rate 4.084%
Option life 410 5 years
Expected volatility 45%
Expected dividend yield 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over the previous four years prior to
the issuance of share option.

The binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of the
options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
values of the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

URGBARER ZARRE (4)

AARR-_ZELFRA+—HBRTEHN
RSGEFHEDBRE o &R AR
I A BT 2 MERE 2 =9
Z mREL BB cERF REE
B fTE 2 ERE 2 =9 — KM AE
BRANARBEZERNTEB R —F EEE
BEROBBEFT2ERRFRI—B AL -
KA—EARAETERENEHBSEZ
N B 55000000787 ©

AAEBREATERRAZBRAT

ARRBMHE

HHE Z (B 0.707 7T
IEE 0.70787T
[ f 1 2 4.084%
fE RS i 2R 4T 55
TEHRR 1R 45%
TEHAlR B X 0%

TEHRR IR T3 A B B IR R B S N 2
RABERIBEETE °

ARBIERAZBAARAEERBRE 2 AF
B - EBEEATFERRBZEHER
RNVBZENEF 2 HEMET - BREZE
BEEZTRZHOFRETIERKR) MK
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35.

100

SRR MY ot

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2009 HLZE —EZNFUNA=THILFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of its business, the Group entered into the

following transactions with related party:

(a)

(b)

(c)

ASAT group

35.

BB 5

REBERSD  NEEQEBYITETT
SRS

(a) HRENEH

Sales of integrated circuit leadframes,
heatsinks and stiffeners

Interest income for convertible
preferred shares

Interest-free loans are obtained from a director, as disclosed

in Note 25.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management during the year as follows:

$HE SRR BB 51 ARAE -
B R nss 1R
BB

82 89

9 12

(b)

(c)

M—UEBEEREZ2EE8EXR - #8
AR 25 B o

TEEBEAEBZHMN
EEMHMERERABFAZH
T

Short-term benefits
Share-based payments

The remuneration of directors and key management is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

VAR AR 7 2R 2 3R

15 17

15 18

EEMTREEABZHME M
FHEZEeEREARE LTSS
BRERTE -



36.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

36.

The following are the particulars regarding the Company'’s
subsidiaries as at 30th April, 2009 and 2008 which principally affect
the results, assets or liabilities of the Group as the directors are of
the opinion that a full list of all the subsidiaries will be of excessive
length. These subsidiaries operate principally in the place of

incorporation unless otherwise indicated.

Name of subsidiary

HEAREH

The Industrial Investment
Company Limited

QPL (Holdings) Limited
mEAFERAT

QPL Limited (Note )
REERLR(Hi)

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
R/
AL

Cayman Islands

REEE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
Bh

Principal activities

IERB

Investment holding

AZR

Investment holding

Manufacture and
sale of integrated
dircuit leadframes,
heatsinks and
stiffeners

HERBERK
FHoIAIE -
HER RIS

Paid up

registered capital/
Issued share capital
EdfEs/
BRIRE

2009

—%%

—RR

2,050 ordinary shares
of HKST each
2050RBREBIBT
ZERR

408,000,772 ordinary
shares of HK90.04 each

408000772 SR EE
004BTTZ ERR

2 ordinary shares of
HKS1 each and
1,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HKS$1 each (Note b)

WREREEIETL
AR 000
BREEIET.
ERZEETRD
(Hizto)

ITEMBAAFE

ATRARAR-BEAFR-FB/\F
MA=tREBEPEAREIEE  AE
HRBEZMBRRAFE  EER5  FID
FMEHBARZ AERBRTE - RIS

BitE  ZEMBARIEENAETMAKL
HEGAR L o
Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital/
issued share capital held by
KRiMES/
BRTRACAELA
Company subsidiary
LA HEAT
2009 2008
hE ZEENE “ET)\F
244 244 97.56 9756
100 100 - =
- - 100 100
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. FEMBLARIFBE®)

(continued)

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital/
issued share capital held by
Place of Paid up BamER/
establishment/ registered capital/ BRTRAZEELA

Name of subsidiary incorporation  Principal activities  Issued share capital Company subsidiary
R/ 5 3t
WEAFAM EMRULE  FEXE ERIRA AR WEAR
2009 2008 2009 2008
= D E S

Talent Focus Industries Hong Kong Manufacture and 2 ordinary shares - 50 - 50
Limited BB sale of stamped of HKS1 each
SREXBRAH leadframes and IREREEET
moulds IR
HERHERR
SIERTE
QPL(US)Inc. United States Distribution of 150,603 ordinary shares 66.4 664 336 36
of America integrated circuit of no par value,
£ leadframes and paid upto

investment holding USD4,071,281
PESKEE 150603 R B (B
SIERRERR  EER BARA

4071817
REST(RII) PRC Distribution of 1SD3,000000 - - 100 100
BRAT] HE stamped leadframes 300000057
(Note ) (Aiitc) and moulds
PHHERE| R
RI#
Notes: Htst -
(@) Operating principally in the PRC. (@) FERFRELLE -
(b) The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, are practically of (b) HAASEFE CRIERD - B L&
no economic value. KBEE(E -

© A foreign wholly-owned corporate. (© RINEBEERE -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end HEFK  BIEWEBARFETENESRS
of the year. 75 ©
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
RIS

The consolidated income statement and the consolidated balance sheet N AR RSB R HIBEERGEEMBmE L
of the Group for the past five financial years, as extracted from the Group's ~ AEBBEAEVBREE 2GRS RMGEBE
published audited consolidated financial statements, are set out below: aEx:

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT mEWEER

For the year ended 30th April
BENA=THLEE

2005
—EETRE
HKS'M
BEBT
(restated)
(=5)
Turnover e 418 414 306 337 275
Loss before taxation B iR EE (271) (25) (102) (43) (95)
Taxation credit (charge)  FAIEIER (2 H) 4 - 21 (1) (1)
Loss for the year FEREEN
attributable to izl
shareholders (267) (25) (81) (44) (96)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET mEEERER
At 30th April
REA=+A
2005
—TTRF
HKS'M
BEBTT
(restated)
(7==51)
Property, plant and M - e RERE
equipment 276 241 162 122 53
Interest in an associate B A TR @) = = = -
Investments in securities  FHFRE 4 - - = =
Investment in convertible FI AR B RITE
preferred shares —ExEMH
- loan portion - - - - =
Available-for-sale AEHERE
investments = 3 - - -
Other receivable Hib Ui zRIa = - - - 5
Current assets mEEE 208 223 203 181 98
Current liabilities mERE (213) (164) (152) (116) (75)
273 303 213 187 81
Share capital A& 51 61 61 61 61
Share premium and BRI B R
reserves 179 224 148 122 12
Shareholders' fund ERES 230 285 209 183 73
Long term borrowings ~ RHIEE 37 13 - - 4
Accrued expenses g4 5 5 4 4 4
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEARE 1 - - - -
273 303 213 187 81

Amounts disclosed above for the year ended 30th April, 2005 have been EXBEREE—EERAFNA=THIEFEZR

restated to reflect the change in accounting policy for the adoption of FHELEY  URMEBEE-_TTFNA=+HIE
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the year ended 30th April, 2006. FERRMNEBGTMASRM 2 BEMBRESE

AMEHEFTBR2ER °
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